
Business Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee
Date: Wednesday, 4 July 2018
Time: 6.00 p.m.
Venue: Committee Room 1 - Wallasey Town Hall

Contact Officer: Andrew Mossop
Tel: 0151 691 8501
e-mail: andrewmossop@wirral.gov.uk
Website: www.wirral.gov.uk

AGENDA
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

2. MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
/ PARTY WHIP 

Members are asked to consider whether they have any disclosable 
pecuniary interests and/or any other relevant interest in connection 
with any item(s) on this agenda and, if so, to declare them and state 
the nature of the interest.

Members are reminded that they should also declare whether they are 
subject to a party whip in connection with any item(s) to be considered 
and, if so, to declare it and state the nature of the whipping 
arrangement.

3. MINUTES                                                                       (Pages 1 - 6)

To approve the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting held on 27 
March, 2018.

4. MANAGEMENT OF CAMPERVANS AT COASTAL LOCATIONS 
(Pages 7 - 12)

5. RE-COMMISSIONING OF HIGHWAY SERVICES FROM OCTOBER 
2018                                                                           (Pages 13 - 18)

6. OUTCOMES FROM CHINA VISIT - 2016                     (Pages 19 - 22)

7. EARLY IMPACT OF UNIVERSAL CREDIT                  (Pages 23 - 46)

Public Document Pack



8. LIVERPOOL CITY REGION COMBINED AUTHORITY UPDATE 
(Pages 47 - 50)

9. LIVERPOOL CITY REGION COMBINED AUTHORITY - OVERVIEW 
& SCRUTINY COMMITTEE                                         (Pages 51 - 56)

10. 2017/18 QUARTER 4 AND YEAR END WIRRAL PLAN 
PERFORMANCE                                                         (Pages 57 - 82)

11. BUSINESS OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - WORK 
PROGRAMME REPORT                                             (Pages 83 - 92)

12. APPOINTMENT OF THE HIGHWAYS REPRESENTATION PANEL 
(Pages 93 - 96)

13. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS APPROVED BY THE CHAIR 



BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Tuesday, 27 March 2018

Present: Councillor P Hackett (Vice-Chair in the Chair)

Councillors RL Abbey
E Boult
G Ellis
A Leech
I Lewis
J McManus

D Mitchell
J Stapleton
W Ward
KJ Williams
S Williams
G Wood

Deputy: Councillor C Muspratt (In place of M Sullivan)

Apologies: Councillor T Pilgrim

52 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Councillor Pat Hackett welcomed everyone to the meeting and noted that 
apologies had been received from Councillor Mike Sullivan who had a deputy 
standing in for him and also from Councillor Tracey Pilgrim. 

53 MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST / 
PARTY WHIP 

Members were asked to consider whether they had any disclosable pecuniary 
interests and/or any other relevant interest in connection with any item(s) on 
this agenda and, if so, to declare them and state the nature of the interest.

Members were reminded that they should also declare whether they were 
subject to a party whip in connection with any item(s) to be considered and, if 
so, to declare it and state the nature of the whipping arrangement.

No such declarations were made.

A  Member referred to the fact that a number of items had been withdrawn 
from this agenda due to the meeting being in the pre-election restrictive period 
and had noted that the meeting for March 2019 would be in the same period.

The Scrutiny Officer responded that this had been identified as an issue and 
once Committees had been constituted in May the matter of moving this 
particular committee meeting, scheduled for later in March, 2019 would be 
looked into.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



54 MINUTES 

Members were requested to receive the minutes of the Business Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee meeting held on 23 January, 2018.

Councillor Dave Mitchell requested feedback in respect of minute 45, 
‘Minutes’, and the issue of officers attending meetings to present reports. 

In response, the Scrutiny Officer informed the meeting that it had been agreed 
that the financial monitoring report would be the first item on the agenda after 
procedural items and that it was important for officers to attend meetings to 
respond to questions.

Resolved – That the minutes of the meeting held on 23 January, 2018, be 
approved.

55 FINANCIAL MONITORING REPORT QUARTER 3 2017/18 

Jenny Spick, Senior Manager, Financial Planning and Policy, introduced the 
report of the Director of Finance and Investment which set out the Council’s 
revenue and capital monitoring position for 2017/18 quarter 3. The report 
gave details of key issues within the business theme, progress on the 
implementation of savings and income and debt. There was a current 
projected underspend on revenue of £4.2m.

Jenny Spick gave a presentation to the Committee which included further 
details on:

 The 2017/18 forecast outturn
 The 2018/19 budget
 Business Rates Overview of Income Source
 Basics of a Government Fair Funding Review

Responding to comments from Members, Jenny Spick stated that with regard 
to debts secured against properties in respect of social care activities she 
would come back with these figures as to the level currently. The Business 
Rates retention pilot could last until the nationwide, full Business Rates 
Retention Scheme became operational and £68m was in the Council budget 
through this scheme. Under the previous funding system the Council would 
have received approximately £37m through Business rates with the remainder 
being made up of Rate Support Grant, Section 31 Grants and Better Care 
funding. Work was being undertaken across the Liverpool City Region to 
monitor the effects of the pilot and what the differential would have been with 
the previous system. With regard to all the assets held by the Council she 
reported that no issues had been raised by the external auditors and the Audit 
and Risk Management Committee received regular reports.

Page 2



Responding to comments on the capital programme, Paul Satoor, Director of 
Corporate Resources and Reform, informed the meeting that thermal 
mapping was an IT system used by the highways service to target those 
areas most in need of gritting. The money for Eureka, the National Children’s 
Museum would be to support the funding application to bring forward the 
development proposed for Seacombe Ferry.

A Member referred to the four savings options rated as red and the fact that 
they had been largely mitigated by the use of contingency funding; he queried 
how much more contingency funding was available and suggested that 
answers should be provided by the Chief Executive and the Leader of the 
Council.

Resolved –

(1) That the quarter 3 revenue forecast underspend of £4.2 million be 
noted.

(2) That the performance of the capital projects and amendments to the 
capital programme within this area be noted.

(3) That a copy of the presentation be circulated to the Committee.

56 UPDATE ON LIVERPOOL CITY REGION DEVELOPMENTS 

Rose Boylan, Policy and Strategy Manager, introduced a report and gave a 
presentation setting out a brief overview of latest developments at the 
Liverpool City Region (LCR). A wide range of activity continued and the report 
highlighted a small extract of these, including those within the portfolios of 
Economic Growth and Culture which Wirral had the lead for. The report and 
presentation expanded on the following areas:

 LCR Culture Strategy
 Tackling Violence against Women and Girls
 LCR Skills Strategy
 Funding to improve City Region’s Key Route Network

With regard to the culture strategy, she informed the meeting of the huge 
economic impact generated by expenditure on culture in the LCR. A Boroughs 
of Culture initiative had been launched with Liverpool and St Helens being this 
year’s boroughs and Wirral becoming the Borough of Culture in 2019.

Rose Boylan also referred to the new collective approach to end violence 
against women and girls, building on the range of existing good practice 
taking place across the LCR. Also, an LCR Skills Strategy had recently been 
agreed and she highlighted the key outcomes of this. 

Page 3



A package of £25m funding to support 15 highway schemes that would make 
improvements to the city region’s Key Route Network (KRN) had recently 
been approved. This was made up of the strategic highway routes that were 
vital to growth in the LCR, including specific Wirral Schemes: Kingsway 
Tunnel connectivity; Wirral Waters Safety Upgrade and A41 Corridor 
Improvement.

Responding to comments from Members, Rose Boylan stated that she did not 
have the detail as to the Wirral Waters Safety Upgrade but would supply more 
information on this in writing. The figures for the impact of culture on the City 
Region were robust figures widely agreed and accepted. With regard to the 
A41 corridor improvements she would find out the exact focus of where these 
would be.

In respect of apprentices Paul Satoor, Director of Corporate Resources and 
Reform, stated that he would find out further information on the 
apprenticeships from the Wirral Metropolitan College. He also informed the 
Committee that the Wirral Growth Company planned to source local trade and 
develop apprentices. Rose Boylan confirmed that Wirral Council did pay the 
living wage to all apprentices. She also stated that organisations, voluntary 
and community groups wishing to get involved in the LCR initiative to end 
violence against women and girls could do so through herself. 

Resolved – That the report be noted. 

57 LIVERPOOL CITY REGION COMBINED AUTHORITY SCRUTINY PANEL - 
VERBAL UPDATE 

Councillor Gillian Wood gave a brief verbal update on the work of the 
Liverpool City Region Combined Authority Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

A copy of the Spatial Development Strategy Scrutiny Review report had been 
circulated to members of the Committee. A review panel had looked at the 
processes and what was needed for the LCR Planning Team to deliver the 
Spatial Development Strategy, including how it could be delivered within the 
existing governance and available resources.
 
Councillor Wood gave a brief overview of two scrutiny reviews which were 
currently underway on ‘Air Quality’ and ‘Welfare Reform and Universal Credit’ 
and both these reports would be circulated when they had been completed 
and presented to the Combined Authority.

During this item Councillor Warren Ward declared a personal interest as an 
employee of the Department for Work and Pensions.

Resolved – That the report be noted.

Page 4



58 2017/18 QUARTER 3 WIRRAL PLAN PERFORMANCE 

Carl Gurnell, Team Leader – Performance and Scrutiny, introduced a report 
which provided the 2017/18 Quarter 3 (October - December 2017) 
performance report for Wirral Plan pledges under the Business theme. The 
Quarter 3 report was included as Appendix 1 to the report, and provided a 
description of the progress in Quarter 3, including available data in relation to 
a range of outcome indicators and supporting measures.

He highlighted the Wirral Ways to Work Programme which had hit a 
significant milestone having engaged over 3,500 participants since its start in 
April 2016, supporting 1,664 participants back into employment or training up 
to 31st December 2017. The possibility of extending this to 2020 was now 
being looked at. With regard to the proposed Eureka Merseyside project at 
Seacombe he reported that it had not progressed any further with Northern 
Culture Fund monies but the LCR was looking at alternative funding options.

Carl Gurnell referred to the performance indicator on jobs created, which for 
quarter 3 was below target though the Wirral Chamber of Commerce had 
expressed confidence in meeting / exceeding the year-end target by March 
2018. The performance indicator on those killed or seriously injured in road 
traffic accidents had slipped to amber rating in quarter 3, however this figure 
was still provisional, and as an update was not available in time for this 
meeting, it would be confirmed in quarter 4.

A Member queried the validity of statistics from a public satisfaction survey for 
public transport if the same people weren’t asked each year. Carl Gurnell 
responded that a reputable organisation was procured to undertake this 
survey and the results were statistically accepted.

Responding to a Member’s comment the Chair reported that the Council’s 
receipt of the National Transport Award for the ‘Mind Your Business’ project 
was being publicised.

Resolved – That the report be noted.

59 BUSINESS OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME UPDATE 
REPORT 

The Committee considered a report from the Chair which explained the 
process of developing and managing the scrutiny work programme for the 
municipal year.

Following consultation with senior officers, it was agreed that a number of 
items considered for this committee’s agenda would be deferred to the new 
municipal year in light of pre-election restriction considerations. These 
included reports on the outcomes of the Liverpool City Region business 

Page 5



delegation to China in October 2016, the management of camper vans and a 
presentation on the recommissioning of highways services. 

The report updated the Committee on current work programme items, 
including, Universal Credit and pre-decision scrutiny on the Council’s 
Commercial Strategy.

An appendix to the report listed items awaiting scheduling in the new 
municipal year.

Resolved – That the report be noted.

60 CHAIR'S THANKS 

Councillor Hackett, as this was the last meeting for this municipal year, 
thanked all the officers and Members of the Committee and wished Councillor 
Eddie Boult the best of luck for the future as he was not standing for re-
election.

Page 6



Appendix 1

WIRRAL COUNCIL
BUSINESS OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
4 JULY 2018

REPORT TITLE MANAGEMENT OF CAMPERVANS AT COASTAL 
LOCATIONS

REPORT OF STRATEGIC COMMISSIONER FOR 
ENVIRONMENT

REPORT SUMMARY

At the request of Committee this report sets out the background and latest position 
with respect to the management of campervans at coastal locations. 

The effective management of campervans and other visitors to the borough primarily 
contributes to the Wirral Plan Pledge to achieve a Vibrant Tourism Economy.

To date the presence of campervans has mainly been an issue affecting the 
Wallasey and New Brighton Wards. 

RECOMMENDATION/S

The views of the Committee are welcomed on the issues outlined in this report. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



Appendix 1

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

1.1 The effective management of campervans can reduce complaints from local 
residents and contribute to a vibrant tourism economy.

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 Alternative options for the management of campervans are outlined in this 
report.

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 During the past twelve months, numerous complaints have been received 
from residents in New Brighton and Wallasey Wards regarding the overnight 
parking of campervans and similar vehicles along Kings Parade and Coastal 
Drive in New Brighton.  The concerns have focused on the aesthetics of these 
vehicles parking at this seaside location along with anecdotal evidence of 
environmental offences being committed (waste being thrown into the sea 
etc).  Officers have visited the location on numerous occasions and to date 
there has not been any tangible evidence of environmental or other offences 
being committed that would warrant formal enforcement action being taken.

3.2 It is reported anecdotally that New Brighton is promoted amongst the 
campervan fraternity as a place to visit, in part due to the availability of free 
parking.  It is also reported anecdotally that a proportion of those people 
staying in campervans visit the local attractions and make use of the food and 
drink offer, contributing to the local economy. 

3.3 In October 2017, Ward Members requested a meeting with officers to look at 
potential options for the management of campervans visiting New Brighton.  
The options identified focused on either removing/ discouraging campervans 
from parking on the highway by regulation (ie. a Traffic Regulation Order to 
ban or charge for vehicles) or by incentivising such vehicles to park at an 
alternative off-highway site.  A summary of the options discussed at the 
meeting is appended to this report (see Appendix 1).

3.4 As part of the budget process for 2018/19 the Council has, subject to 
satisfactory completion of legal/ consultation processes, approved in principle 
the introduction of charges for parking on the highway along Kings Parade 
and Coastal Drive to raise revenue to pay for the management of these 
coastal locations.  This includes the proposal to charge £20 per night for any 
vehicle wishing to park overnight (10pm to 8am) which it is anticipated would 
result in a dramatic reduction in overnight parking by campervans.  

3.5 In terms of alternative off-highway provision, officers have carried out a 
preliminary assessment of the potential to use a nearby Council site (off Kings 
Parade near the Sailing Club) for such a purpose.  The development of a 
dedicated campervan site in New Brighton would be consistent with the 

Page 8



Appendix 1

Economic Plan for the resort, published in 2016 by New Brighton Coastal 
Community Team (a partnership between local businesses, community 
groups/ organisations and Wirral Council).  Even if potential land is available, 
it is anticipated that significant capital investment would be required for the 
necessary civil engineering works to create such a facility.   

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1 The estimated income from parking charges along Kings Parade/ Coastal 
Drive is £65k per annum.

5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 There are no specific legal implications arising from this report.

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: ICT, STAFFING AND ASSETS

6.1 This issue is currently managed from within existing staffing resources.

6.2 The provision of an alternative off-highway site for campervans would have 
asset implications in terms of the construction/ creation of such a facility as 
well as its ongoing operation/ maintenance. 

7.0 RELEVANT RISKS
 

7.1 There are no significant risk issues associated with this report.

8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION
 

8.1 Meetings have taken place with local Ward Members in Wallasey and New 
Brighton Wards in particular to discuss and develop options for the 
management of campervans.

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

9.1 There are no specific equality implications associated with this report.

REPORT AUTHOR: Mark Smith
Strategic Commissioner - Environment
telephone:  (0151) 606 2103
email:   marksmith@wirral.gov.uk

 
APPENDICES
Appendix 1: Campervans, New Brighton Promenade – Potential Options

REFERENCE MATERIAL
None

Page 9

mailto:marksmith@wirral.gov.uk


Appendix 1

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date
Business Overview & Scrutiny Committee – Budget 
Workshop (car parking at coastal locations budget 
option)

January 2018

Page 10



Appendix 1

CAMPERVANS, NEW BRIGHTON PROMENADE – POTENTIAL OPTIONS

Option: Details: Benefits: Issues/ Risks:

A1. Regulate highway – 
prohibit campervans

Traffic Order with simple 
night-time ban (8pm-8am)

-Directly addresses the issue raised
-Some evidence of inconsiderate parking 
during daytime peak periods which may 
not be addressed
-Requires minimum number of signs to 
enforce (approx. 200) and no markings 

-Cost of implementation: just over 200 
signs (approx. £20k)
-Risk of displaced parking into nearby 
residential areas/ other locations
-Risk of objections/ legal challenge to 
Traffic Order
-Only ad-hoc enforcement regime 
possible in absence of ongoing 
revenue funding
-Need clear criteria for enforcement 
(eg. DfT motorvan definition?)
-Possible effect on tourism/ visitor 
economy and loss of income to local 
businesses

A2. Regulate highway – 
charge for campervans

Traffic Order introducing 
parking charges eg. £10 
campervans overnight (8pm-
8am); daytime £1 up to 2 hrs, 
£2 all day for all vehicles
  

-Directly addresses the issue raised 
including daytime inconsiderate parking
-Creates revenue stream to fund day and 
night-time enforcement and make 
implementation self-funding
  

-Significant cost of implementation: 
signs, markings and pay and display 
machines (over £100k)
-Risk of displaced parking into nearby 
residential areas
-Signs and machines: cost of ongoing 
maintenance in coastal environment
-Transient nature of some campervans 
may make it difficult to chase fines
-Possible effect on tourism/ visitor 
economy and loss of income to local 
businesses

P
age 11



Appendix 1

B. Provide alternative off-
highway site

Establish and promote 
dedicated campervan site on 
nearby Parks & Countryside 
land with nominal cost (£2 for 
12 hours 8-8) to make 
proposal self-funding and 
cover cost of signage, hard-
standings etc

-A more passive approach to discourage/ 
reduce campervans that will not affect 
tourism/ local business and not have risk 
of potentially displacing parking into 
nearby areas
-Potential to provide an attractive 
campervan/ motorhome offer as part of 
the tourism/ visitor economy strategy to 
promote business in New Brighton

-If charge is necessary to make self-
funding then may not be sufficiently 
attractive if campervans can still park 
on the highway for free
-Local residents may not want 
campervans parking on areas of open 
space in the locality

C. Combination A1 or 2 
plus B 

Introduce enforcement and 
alternative provision in 
tandem 

-The most effective method of removing/ 
discouraging campervans from parking 
on the highway: regulation/ enforcement 
combined with a more attractive and 
cost-effective nearby off-highway location
-Potential to provide an attractive 
campervan/ motorhome offer as part of 
the tourism strategy to promote business 
in New Brighton

-Significant cost of regulating the 
highway as per A1 and A2 above
-Local residents may not want 
campervans parking on areas of open 
space as per B above 

D. No further action No highway regulation or 
alternative off-highway site: 
continue to just take action 
on any enforceable offences

-No resource implications -Insufficient evidence re traffic 
management or environmental effects 
of campervans to justify significant 
resources/ action 

P
age 12



WIRRAL COUNCIL
BUSINESS OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
4 JULY 2018

REPORT TITLE RE-COMMISSIONING OF HIGHWAY 
SERVICES FROM OCTOBER 2018

REPORT OF STRATEGIC COMMISSIONER FOR 
ENVIRONMENT

REPORT SUMMARY 

The Council and contractor Bam Nuttall (BAMN) have agreed that the current 
strategic contract for Highway services will come to an end on 30th September 2018 
after one six month extension to the original four year contract that commenced in 
April 2014.

Taking account of the limited time period to re-commission these services, an 
options appraisal exercise using the Highway Maintenance Efficiency Programme 
(HMEP) Procurement Route Choices Toolkit indicates the most viable way forward is 
to bring these services back under the direct control of the Council.

The re-commissioning of these services based on this ‘direct control/ ownership’ 
model was approved by the Leader of the Council on 28th November 2017. This 
report and accompanying presentation by officers provides an update on progress in 
re-commissioning these services to meet the October 2018 deadline.

These services are delivered across all Wards though there are no changes to 
specific service policies or standards associated with this re-commissioning exercise. 
In terms of Wirral Plan Pledges, these services directly contribute to the Transport 
and Technology Infrastructure Pledge which in turn plays a key role in supporting 
many of the outcomes under the Business and Environment themes in the Plan.

RECOMMENDATION/S

Committee is requested to note and endorse the progress in re-commissioning these 
services to meet the October 2018 deadline. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

1.1 Re-commissioning these services to ensure new arrangements are in place 
for October 2018 when the current contract expires is important to ensure 
continuity of service delivery.  This is especially important for the day-to-day 
routine work such as pothole and street lighting repairs that ensure the 
Council meets its statutory obligations as Highway Authority.

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 Alternative re-commissioning options were considered as part of the options 
appraisal exercise using the Highway Maintenance Efficiency Programme 
(HMEP) Procurement Route Choices Toolkit.  Taking account of the limited 
time period available, this work highlighted the most viable option is to bring 
these services back under the direct control of the Council. 

2.2 The following critical success factors were used in the options appraisal 
process:

 Strategic fit – aligns with strategic aims
 Value for money – delivers value for money
 Manageable/ flexible – meets the level of service required
 Affordable – delivered within budget
 Achievable – delivered within timescale  

 
3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 Wirral’s highway network, the Council’s biggest asset, is currently worth £2.48 
billion and consists of approximately 1,200 kilometres of road, and is currently 
maintained via the strategic contract with BAM Nuttall (BAMN).  

The contract, which started in April 2014 and is worth around £6 million per 
year, will come to an end on 30th September 2018 having been extended for 6 
months past the original four year term.  The following service areas are 
covered by the current contract:

 Carriageways, footways
 Drainage, culverts and drains
 Street Lighting
 Signs and road markings
 Structures
 Winter maintenance
 Coastal protection infrastructure maintenance

3.2 In summary, the contract consists of two broad types of work:
 

 Routine/ reactive work – day-to-day revenue-funded activity such as 
pothole and street lighting repairs, traditionally undertaken by resources 

Page 14



directly employed by the main contractor and crucial to enabling the 
Council to discharge its statutory responsibilities as Highway Authority; 
and

 Structural/ planned work – capital-funded activity such as ‘plane out and 
resurface’ schemes or specialist surface treatments, traditionally 
undertaken by specialist highway sub-contractors and instrumental in 
enabling the Council to achieve its overall highway condition performance 
indicators.   

4.0 MODEL FOR SERVICE DELIVERY FROM OCTOBER 2018

4.1 The proposed model for these services from October 2018 consists of 
bringing the operational functions currently executed by contractor Bam 
Nuttall (BAMN) back under the direct control of the Council. Client functions 
will continue to be discharged by staff in Highways Management as they are 
now, however the functions currently discharged by the contractor will be 
picked up either by Business (Commercial) Management or by Delivery 
Services. 

4.2 For the delivery of routine/ reactive work, a new highway contracting function 
will be established in Delivery Services and BAMN employees involved in this 
work will transfer into this part of the Council organisation.

4.3 In terms of structural/ planned work, this will continue to be carried out by 
specialist private sector contractors and a framework of arrangements will be 
developed to ensure this work is effectively managed by Business 
(Commercial) Management.   

4.4 Further detail on these proposed arrangements and progress in the re-
commissioning of these services will be the subject of an accompanying 
presentation by officers to the Committee.

5.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

5.1 The value of the current contract is around £6M p.a. consisting of 
approximately £2M p.a. revenue for Routine/ Reactive Works and £4M p.a. 
capital for Structural/ Planned Works.  This excludes the cost of ‘client’ staffing 
functions. 

5.2 It is anticipated that there will be financial efficiencies by bringing contracting 
functions back under the direct control of the Council especially on the 
Routine/ Reactive (revenue funded) side, however these are likely to be in the 
medium-long term and cannot be confirmed at this stage.

5.3 There will be one-off costs, which it is anticipated will be contained from within 
existing budget resources, associated with the departure from the existing 
(BAMN) contract however these costs will be incurred regardless of which 
future commissioning model is chosen.  

Page 15



6.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

6.1 The re-commissioning of these services is essential to enable the Council to 
fulfil its statutory obligations as Highway Authority, especially the Routine/ 
Reactive Works side which plays a key role in the Highways Act Section 58 
Defence inspection and repair regime.

6.2 Section 41 of the Highways Act 1980 imposes a duty on the Council, as 
Highway Authority, to maintain highways at the public expense.

7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: ICT, STAFFING AND ASSETS

7.1 In terms of staffing, BAMN employees are being reassured that the service will 
continue following the 30th September 2018 when the current arrangements 
cease and that the Transfer of Undertakings and Protection of Employment 
(TUPE) Regulations will apply to those that may be affected. Staff on the 
‘client’ side (Commissioning Support Unit) are not directly affected by this re-
commissioning exercise.

7.2 In terms of assets, the contract is currently delivered by the BAMN operation 
working out of Prenton Depot which is wholly owned by the Council and it is 
likely that the operation will continue from this depot at least in the short-term. 

7.3 Investment in new plant, vehicles and ICT will be likely to ensure a modern 
and efficient directly-controlled highways service.

8.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

8.1 Relevant risks were considered as part of the options appraisal process to 
decide the proposed way forward for re-commissioning these services.  A 
detailed approach to risk management is an important part of the effective 
management of this re-commissioning project.

9.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 

9.1 Engagement with the service provider market is an essential part of the 
necessary procurement process for the re-commissioning of these services.

9.2 Regular engagement and updates for trade union representatives and staff, 
both with the Council and BAMN, will also be an important aspect of this 
project to ensure a smooth transition to the new arrangements.   

10.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

10.1 There are no implications under this heading.

Page 16



REPORT AUTHOR: Mark Smith
Strategic Commissioner - Environment
telephone:  (0151) 606 2103
email:   marksmith@wirral.gov.uk

 

APPENDICES
None

REFERENCE MATERIAL
None

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)

Council Meeting Date

Leader Decision Report November 2017

Page 17

mailto:marksmith@wirral.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Business Overview and Scrutiny Committee

REPORT SUMMARY

This report sets out the background and outcomes of the visit undertaken by Wirral Council 
Leader, Cllr. Phil Davies to China in 2016 as part of a Liverpool City Region delegation. 

Attracting inward investment and supporting Wirral businesses to take advantage of 
international trade opportunities in order to grow are pledges within the Wirral Growth Plan.

Economic growth is a key part of realising the Wirral Plan and delivering a better life for 
Wirral’s residents. As an authority we remain committed to working in close partnership with 
other authorities in the region to drive economic success through attracting investment.

These partnerships mean that we are spreading our reach far further than we could achieve 
by working by ourselves and we are able to maximise the range of channels to market that 
are available. 

This matter affects all Wards within the Borough.

RECOMMENDATION

That Members note the contents of this report.

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1. REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION

1.1 To provide members of the Business Overview and Scrutiny Committee with a 
summary of the Council’s visit to China in October 2016 with resulting follow up 
actions.

2. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 Other options are not relevant to this report.

3. INTRODUCTION

3.1 Economic growth is key to realising the Wirral Plan and delivering a better life for 
Wirral’s residents. To support local activity the Council remains committed to 
working closely with other local authorities in the Liverpool City Region to drive 
economic success.

3.2 Wirral’s economic future remains closely linked to the continued success of the 
City region in growing the economy; which is currently worth some £30 billion.  In 
his role as Portfolio holder for Inclusive Growth, Economic Development, Digital 
and Innovation for the Liverpool City Region, the Leader of Wirral Council has 

REPORT TITLE:  OUTCOMES FROM CHINA VISIT - 2016  

REPORT OF: Alan Evans 
Assistant Director: Regeneration, Investment 
and Place Shaping

Page 19

Agenda Item 6



responsibility for supporting the delivery of this growth as well as attracting inward 
investment in order to benefit businesses and residents.  In addition the work that 
takes place with the Wirral Chamber of Commerce ensures that Wirral businesses 
are well placed to take advantage of the opportunities generated at the city region 
level. 

3.3 Pledges within the Wirral Growth Plan include; attracting inward investment and 
supporting Wirral businesses to take advantage of international trade 
opportunities in order to grow. Work has taken place with partners across the city 
region to identify those foreign markets likely to deliver investment for the city 
region.

3.4 This approach of working with partners means that we are maximising the 
channels to market and spreading our reach further than we could achieve by 
ourselves. This level of partnership has resulted in key successful events such as 
the LCR visit to China in 2016 working in partnership with Liverpool Vision and 
Wirral Chamber of Commerce. 

4. BACKGROUND INFORMATION

4.1 Working closely with Combined Authority partners has resulted in a co-ordinated 
approach to attracting inward investment with targeted activity surrounding key 
international markets. This includes China as a platform for wider Wirral 
development, and a focus on specific high value sectors such as advanced 
manufacturing and energy, which will increase the volume of investment enquiries.

4.2 Research undertaken by the Department for International Trade has identified 
China as a key foreign market, as many Chinese businesses see the UK as one of 
the best places in Europe to invest and to trade. Against the backdrop of Brexit, a 
joint UK-China trade and investment review and new government-led trading 
partnerships which could eventually pave the way for free-trade talks, there 
remains impetus to push forward with developing the city region’s trading 
relationship with China. 

Liverpool City Region Business Delegation to China October 2016 

4.3 The delegation, led by Joe Anderson, Mayor of Liverpool, and Cllr. Phil Davies, 
Leader of Wirral Council, with support from the Chambers and Wirral and Liverpool 
Councils built on Liverpool City Region’s relationships in South West China and 
Tianjin and held specific interest to businesses and institutions engaged in the 
following sectors: 
 Energy 
 Civil nuclear 
 Automotive 
 Advanced Manufacturing 
 Healthcare 
 Marine 
 Financial and Professional services 

4.4 The objectives of the October 2016 Business Delegation were to:
 Further strengthen Liverpool City Region’s relationships in China 
 Take advantage of identified business and investment leads and translate into 

contracts
 Explore new business and investment collaborations and opportunities
 Promote the Liverpool City Region as a viable location for Chinese investment

Page 20



4.5 By starting to work more proactively with Liverpool and other city region partners, 
Wirral has opened up and developed a number of new lead generating activities. 
Working in partnership with organisations such as Liverpool Vision, the Local 
Enterprise Partnership and Wirral Chamber of Commerce allows the Council to 
promote investment opportunities in Wirral in a cost effective way. 

Outcomes and Further Activity 

4.6 The delegation visited six cities in China, namely Kunming, Chongqing, Guiyang, 
Qingdao, Shanghai, Beijing and Tianjin. Presentations were made by the LCR in 
all six cities and ‘match-making’ sessions were also held with a variety of 
businesses. 102 leads were being proactively followed up with a high proportion of 
interest in Wirral particularly in low carbon and offshore wind businesses. Wirral 
also signed a sister city agreement with Chongqing Hechuan District.  

4.7 Three Wirral businesses participated in delegation; one of those has successfully 
done business subsequent to arriving back in the UK. Wirral Chamber also had at 
least 12 businesses signed up to participate in a future delegation following the 
2016 visit (see para 4.11). Businesses will be able to build further relationships 
with delegations who are visiting the city region as part of the International 
Business Festival in June 2018. The Festival team have worked on a number of 
enquiries from delegations from China, which include VIP (Mayoral and 
Government delegations) as well as some of the areas visited in October 2016. It 
is anticipated that the Festival will secure in the region of 25 delegations from 
China (approx. 200 delegates).

4.8 Wirral Council leader, Cllr Phil Davies, commented on the fact that the delegation 
had been a City Region wide one which had raised the profile of Wirral and the 
British Consulate had received good feedback following the visit.

4.9 Following the October 2016 trip the City Region hosted 27 inbound delegations 
from China in 2017 with Wirral taking the lead/hosting the following: 

 Qingdao International Economic Cooperation Zone (QIECZ): Cllr Phil 
Davies and the Assistant Director for Regeneration & Inward Investment visited 
Qingdao in October 2016 and subsequently hosted a follow-up visit to Wirral in 
March 2017. During this visit they signed a Memorandum of Understanding 
with Qingdao who agreed, at no cost, to build a Liverpool City Region 
Showcase at Sino-British Innovation Industrial Park. A further visit in July 2017 
finalised this arrangement and the LCR showcase was officially opened by 
Chinese Officials and Gary Millar, Assistant Mayor of Liverpool, in October 
2017. On a visit to China in January 2018, and following on from the launch of 
the LCR showcase, the Prime Minister Theresa May witnessed the signing of a 
Memorandum of Understanding between Qingdao and the Confederation of 
British Industry to further promote the Sion-UK Innovation Park. As a result of 
this continued relationship, Cllr Phil Davies once again met a senior high profile 
delegation from Qingdao at the International Business Festival in June 2018. 

 Chongqing Hechuan District: Following on from the city region visit to 
Hechuan in October 2016, Cllr Phil Davies hosted a return delegation in June 
2017 to discuss cooperation in the advanced manufacturing sector. This 
included opportunities presented by Peel, Liverpool John Moores University 
and The Engineering College.

Page 21



4.10 The LCR took a further outbound delegation to China in Oct/Nov 2017 (led by 
Gary Millar and Ellen Cutler from Invest Liverpool) and they visited the following 
areas, Beijing; Xi’an; Shenzhen; Hangzhou; Shanghai and Qingdao

4.11 To support business engagement with the delegation Wirral Chamber of 
Commerce, Invest Liverpool and China Britain Business Council held a briefing 
session on 23 August at The Lauries in Birkenhead. Following on from the 
interest generated as a result of the October 2016 visit, twenty businesses 
subsequently attended the briefing session which outlined the full programme, 
specific opportunities and support available for businesses. From this three 
Wirral businesses joined the delegation and subsequent follow up support has 
identified that these have enhanced confidence in developing trade links with 
China and have gained contacts that they are currently working with.

4.12 Tranmere Rovers Football Club relationship with China also continues to go 
from strength to strength. Their work with Inner Mongolia in the delivery of a 
range of football development programmes (youth and FA coaching 
programmes) has seen significant delivery at their Solar Campus site as well 
as in Inner Mongolia itself. 

5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
5.1 Costs met from the relevant budget of Assistant Director for Regeneration & 

Inward Investment

6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
6.1 There are no direct implications as a result of this briefing report.

7. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: ICT, STAFFING AND ASSETS
7.1 There are no direct implications as a result of this briefing report.

8. RELEVANT RISKS 
8.1 There are no direct implications as a result of this briefing report.

9. ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 
9.1 There are no direct implications as a result of this report.

10. EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS
Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality?
No because there is no relevance to equality.

REPORT AUTHOR: Beverley Staniford
Investment Lead
telephone:  (0151) 691 8166
email:   beverleystaniford@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES
REFERENCE MATERIAL
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date

Page 22

mailto:beverleystaniford@wirral.gov.uk


Business Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Wednesday, 4 July 2018

REPORT TITLE: Early Impact of Universal Credit

REPORT OF: The Chair of the Committee, Councillor 
Mike Sullivan

REPORT SUMMARY
This report sets out the findings arising from two scrutiny workshops held in 
February 2018 to consider the early impact of Universal Credit in Wirral.  The 
workshops were commissioned by the Chairs of the four Overview & Scrutiny 
Committees in the 2017/18 municipal years and were open to all Overview & 
Scrutiny Members.

This report was originally scheduled to be presented at the Business Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee meeting on 27th March 2018.  As this meeting fell in the pre-
election period, it was agreed by the Chair that the report would be deferred to the 
first meeting of the municipal year.

RECOMMENDATION/S
1) Members are requested to consider the contents of this report and consider 

any recommendations arising from it.  

2) Members are requested to support the proposal to schedule further scrutiny 
workshops in the municipal year and consider the areas of scrutiny focus.  

Page 23

Agenda Item 7



SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

For committee to consider the outcomes of the scrutiny workshops as part of 
the scrutiny work programme. 

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

Not applicable

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

At a meeting of the Chairs of the four Overview & Scrutiny Committees in the 
2017/18 municipal year, it was agreed to undertake scrutiny of the emerging 
impact of Universal Credit.

It was also agreed that the impact of Universal Credit would fall under the 
Business Overview & Scrutiny Committee to ensure that there is no overlap 
or duplication across Committees.  

Two scrutiny workshops were scheduled and were open to all Members 
sitting on any of the four Overview & Scrutiny committees to ensure 
inclusivity.  

The first workshop was held on February 20th 2018 with key senior council 
officers to get a better understanding of Universal Credit and the impact it has 
on operational services. The second workshop was held on 27th February 
2018 and looked at Universal Credit from the perspective of a number of 
external organisations and Council teams that engage with residents over 
Universal Credit.   

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are none arising from this report.

5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

There are none arising from this report.

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: ICT, STAFFING AND ASSETS

There are none arising from this report.

7.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

There are none arising from this report.

Page 24



8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 

The workshops were undertaken with the engagement of key representatives 
from relevant Council service areas and external organisations.

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS
There are none arising from this report.

REPORT AUTHOR: Michael Lester
Scrutiny Officer
telephone:  (0151) 691 8628
email:   michaellester@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES
Appendix 1 – Emerging Impact of Universal Credit – Scrutiny Report 

REFERENCE MATERIAL

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date

Page 25

mailto:michaellester@wirral.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

EARLY IMPACT OF UNIVERSAL CREDIT

Scrutiny Report of the

Business Overview & Scrutiny Committee

July 2018

Page 27



Early Impact of Universal Credit - Scrutiny Workshops Report Page 2 of 19

CONTENTS

1          INTRODUCTION ...................................................................................................................3

2          UNIVERSAL CREDIT OVERVIEW ..........................................................................................4

3          EMERGING IMPACTS OF UNIVERSAL CREDIT .....................................................................5

             3.1     Impact on the Vulnerable ......................................................................................5

             3.2     Housing & Homelessness.......................................................................................8

                 3.3     Financial Implications...........................................................................................10

                 3.4     Impact of Universal Credit on Wirral Council.......................................................13

4          SUMMARY OF CONCLUSIONS...........................................................................................15

5          APPENDICIES .....................................................................................................................17

            Appendix 1 - Summary of Universal Credit changes ..........................................................17

            Appendix 2 - Post-Scrutiny Workshops feedback – Suggested Actions ............................18

Page 28



Early Impact of Universal Credit - Scrutiny Workshops Report Page 3 of 19

1. INTRODUCTION

Universal Credit Full Service went live on 15th November 2017 for the majority of Wirral’s 
residents and an introductory report was presented to the Business O&S Committee on 29th 
November 2017 detailing how this would be implemented locally.   

Following a meeting of the Chairs of Wirral Council’s four Overview & Scrutiny committees, it 
was agreed to hold two scrutiny workshops for all Overview & Scrutiny Members to look at the 
early impact and any emerging issues of Universal Credit on residents in Wirral and the impact 
on operational services.  

The workshops were held on 20th and 27th February 2018. Wirral Council senior officers and 
representatives from a number of organisations which had responsibility for providing services 
to residents affected by Universal Credit were in attendance.  Members also requested a 
representative from the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) to attend but were 
informed that the Department’s Constitution prohibits Officers attending political forums and 
are therefore unable to be submitted to scrutiny.  Members in attendance at the workshops 
expressed their disappointment at this. 

Workshop 1 – 20th February 2018

 Nicky Dixon, Transaction Management - Business Unit Manager
 Tricia Hughes, Benefits Operational Manager, Wirral Council 
 Julie Williams, Customer Services Senior Manager, Wirral Council
 Vicki Lungley,  One Stop Shop Area Manager 
 Jo Rosser, Call Centre Manager
 Sue Hutchison, Council Tax and Business Rates Manager

Workshop 2 – 27th February 2018

 Catherine Chester, Welfare Rights Adviser
 Sheila Jacobs, Supported Housing & Homelessness Senior Manager
 Carol Johnson-Eyre, Chief Executive Officer, Citizens Advice Wirral
 John Roach, Head of Income Management, Magenta Living
 Richard Roberts, Manager, Wirral Foodbank
 Eddie Gowns, Involve Northwest

It was agreed that the approach taken to deliver the workshops would be for senior officers and 
organisational representatives to deliver an overview of their service area, highlighting their 
initial observations and emerging issues, before the workshops were opened up for a question 
and answer session.  

Page 29



Early Impact of Universal Credit - Scrutiny Workshops Report Page 4 of 19

2. UNIVERSAL CREDIT OVERVIEW 

Universal Credit (UC) is a single monthly payment for people of working age, who are looking 
for work, or to increase the hours they work or on a low income. It aims to help claimants and 
their families to become more independent and to simplify the benefits system by bringing 
together a range of working-age benefits into a single payment.  It replaces the following legacy 
benefits:

 Child Tax Credit
 Housing Benefit
 Income Support 
 Income-based Jobseeker’s Allowance (JSA)
 Income-related Employment and Support Allowance (ESA)
 Working Tax Credit

Universal Credit Live Service was introduced in 2013 in certain areas of the North West, and in 
July 2014 for Wirral.  It has since been progressively rolled out to other areas.  Legacy benefits 
are paid fortnightly, whereas Universal Credit will offer families one single monthly payment.

There are two stages to claiming Universal Credit. The first stage is to make an online claim.  
The second stage is to attend a face-to-face interview (or ‘Initial Work Search Interview’) at a 
Jobcentre Plus office.  The administration of the claim, including verification of identity, is 
undertaken prior to the interview.  The claim does not start until the ID has been verified. At 
the time of the scrutiny workshops, it was up to 9 working days to get an ID verification 
appointment.  The interview is conducted by a Work Coach and will include discussions on the 
conditions of claiming Universal Credit, detailed in a Claimant Commitment, which is to be 
agreed by the claimant. The Claimant Commitment is a two-way agreement between the 
claimant and government setting out what claimants will do to find work in return for receipt of 
Universal Credit. The claimant and Work Coach will decide what goes into the Claimant 
Commitment.  

Universal Credit is paid monthly in arrears and it can take up to five weeks for the first payment 
to reach a claimant’s bank account from the date of the claim.  Advance payments can be 
requested and will be repaid from Universal Credit payments over 12 months.  

Alternative Payment Arrangements (APAs) are available for claimants who can’t manage the 
standard Universal Credit payment.  There are three types of APA available:

 Direct payment of the housing cost element to landlords (known as managed payments)
 Splitting of payment between members of a couple
 More frequent payment of benefit

Some existing claimants receiving legacy benefits will be migrated over to Universal Credit 
following any changes in circumstances, when a current benefit ends (prompting a need to 
claim a new one) or a claimant becomes entitled to a different or new benefit.  

The government’s plan was to migrate all benefit claimants to Universal Credit by 2022 as part 
of its ‘managed migration’.  However, following both scrutiny workshops, the Secretary of State 
for Works and Pensions made a Written Statement on 7th June about Universal Credit.  The 

Page 30



Early Impact of Universal Credit - Scrutiny Workshops Report Page 5 of 19

statement highlights the “increased pace of Universal Credit rollout” and, importantly, details a 
number of changes to be made for people that move on to Universal Credit.  The statement 
goes on to say that in order to implement these changes, migration of all claimants to Universal 
Credit will be complete by March 2023. The changes were notified to all local authorities on 7th 
June and are detailed in Appendix 1.  

3. EMERGING IMPACTS OF UNIVERSAL CREDIT 

3.1 Impact on the vulnerable

The workshops highlighted a general consensus that one of the more significant issues relating 
to Universal Credit is those customers who have presented with a wide range of complex and 
diverse needs when making a claim.  

Citizens Advice Wirral, a local charity which delivers the Council’s main information and advice 
contract, reported that it had advised 141 people in January 2018 regarding Universal Credit 
following ‘Full Service’.  This is a significant increase from the 33 people it had advised in 
September 2017 and it is expected that the upward trend will increase over the coming 
months.  Citizens Advice Wirral reported that it is mostly the vulnerable clients with complex 
issues coming to them for information and advice.  It was further highlighted that Universal 
Credit is a complex benefit to understand and these vulnerable claimants who may have a 
learning disability, or not have the mental capacity, find it harder to go through the required 
process.  Other claimants may not have internet access or the skills needed to apply or manage 
online claims.  

Citizens Advice Wirral summarised the key issues it has identified through its work with clients 
in relation to those which are more vulnerable.  These include:

 Completing an application
 Access – No email and/or no telephone
 Problems remembering the UC user account details
 Travelling to the Job Centre 2-3 times when no money is available
 Lack of understanding of how the advance payment works
 Monthly budgeting

Furthermore, the impact seen by Citizens Advice Wirral has been an increase in financial 
hardship (food poverty, fuel poverty and an increase in debts) and the deterioration of health 
through increased anxiety, stress and the impact on mental health and wellbeing.  A typical 
example of the vulnerable clients Citizens Advice Wirral is supporting, and expecting to see 
more of as claimants are migrated over, is highlighted below:

Page 31



Early Impact of Universal Credit - Scrutiny Workshops Report Page 6 of 19

Wirral Council’s One Stop Shops report the same issues highlighted by Citizens Advice Wirral.  
Across the broad remit of the services One Stop Shops provide, officers reported that there is a 
high footfall of residents with a number of challenges.  These include drug and alcohol abuse 
and a high number of digitally challenged customers with many still unable to access services 
online, despite all the support that can be provided to them.   

Citizen’s Advice Wirral also has concerns with limited advocacy support as the Advocacy Hub in 
Wirral is focussed around the statutory health and social care. It was stated that a lack of 
advocacy support would result in a lack of aid for the most vulnerable i.e. no help at medical 
assessments for benefits to ensure their true situation is assessed and to ensure a wrong 
decision is not made.  It was suggested that other advocacy support would be required to 
access the job centre and other services, such as housing solicitors.  

A common theme identified by all stakeholders is that there is an expectation to see a higher 
proportion of vulnerable claimants when migration proceeds, and that there is a risk of some 
falling through the net.  

The Feeding Birkenhead network, which is a coalition of churches, foodbanks, community 
groups and other organisations working to eliminate hunger, has reported that the complexity 
and confusion associated with applying for Universal Credit has been evidenced in its work and 
the impact, in particular, to the more vulnerable.

Members were informed that the DWP has responded to feedback on these issues and is now 
providing mental health training for work coaches and more support for young people.  Wirral 
Council’s frontline services, including One Stop Shops, will continue to evaluate the impacts of 
Universal Credit as mores cases become live.

Case Study – Vulnerable Client
 Client – Single female who has a learning disability
 Received Disability Living Allowance, low rate mobility. No other benefits in place
 No email 
 Had rent arrears – Facing eviction as not claimed housing benefit since January 

2016
 Would not be able to meet claimant commitments due to limited understanding
 Did not understand housing element of Universal Credit  

Citizens Advice Wirral supported the client to –
 Make the Universal Credit claim (standard allowance and housing element).  The 

client was unable to complete an online application
 Visit the jobcentre.  It took 3 visits to make the claim, verify ID and meet the work 

coach  
 Request an advance payment
 Help client understand that the advance payment of £517.75 included a housing 

element
 Request an advance payment
 Helped client understand the advance payment of £517.75 included a housing 

element

Page 32



Early Impact of Universal Credit - Scrutiny Workshops Report Page 7 of 19

The Digital Challenge
One of the aims of Universal Credit was to improve the efficiency of the process of claiming 
benefits using online technology.  The roll-out of Universal Credit ‘full service’ requires 
claimants to log and manage claims online with an account created using an email address. This 
presents a challenge to manage a problem of ‘digital exclusion’ which, Members heard, are 
generally disadvantaging lower-income groups, older people and those with disabilities or 
learning difficulties.   

As at December 2017, there were 5,511 Universal Credit live claims.  The graph below (Fig. 1) 
highlights the demographics of all residents who are claiming Universal Credit.

(Fig. 1 -  Universal Credit claimants by age Dec 2017)

The majority of Universal Credit claimants in Wirral fall into the 20-29 age bracket (2,277 
claimants as at December 2017)  but claimants in the older demographic are now making that 
transition over (713 claimants in the over 50 to 64 demographic).  Members were informed 
that they now have to manage not only the digital aspect of Universal Credit, but also the 
prospect of signing up to a claim commitment and assessment regarding how much work 
searching they can feasibly do.  Digital access also impacts the homeless population as is 
detailed later in the report.  The requirement for Universal Credit applications to be managed 
online was raised as a concern by Members with the resources required to provide digital 
support. 

Members were informed that all Wirral Council Libraries and One Stop Shops provide free 
access to computers for transactional services, such as Universal Credit, for a rolling two-hour 
period.  It is also understood that an Assisted Digital work stream is in place to ensure a safety 
net is in place for residents seeking to access digital services. The first phase of this work began 
in December 2017 and focused on identifying the current ‘assisted digital offer’ from Wirral 
Council and benchmarking it against other similar authorities, as well as the Government Digital 
Service (GDS) design standards. It is understood that this will highlight any gaps in the current 
offer which will in turn lead to the development of a plan to address those gaps.

Page 33



Early Impact of Universal Credit - Scrutiny Workshops Report Page 8 of 19

Wirral Council and the DWP set up a funded DWP local partnership agreement from July 2014.  
This is based on the national model and is an arrangement the DWP actively encourages local 
authorities to support.  ‘Assisted Digital’ is one of the services provided within the agreement 
and enables One Stop Shops to provide face-to-face support for customers who require help 
and support with the Universal Credit on-line claim process including using assistance with 
setting up an email address, ID verification on-line and to create a Universal Credit account.    ID 
verification appointments are supposed to be within three working days but it was reported 
that it currently stands at nine.   

Members acknowledged a concern raised that with an online application now having to be 
made by claimants, mistakes and failure to properly manage this process can mean incorrect 
submissions, failed applications, sanctions and ultimately a delay in rent payments. 

3.2 Housing and Homelessness

Housing Benefit is now part of Universal Credit and helps pay for rent for residents on a low 
income or benefits.  With the roll-out of Universal Credit, tenants will no longer receive Housing 
Benefit and will instead receive a rent element in their monthly Universal Credit payment which 
will be paid directly into their bank, building society or credit union account rather than having 
their rent paid for them.  If a tenant doesn’t have a bank, building society or credit union 
account, their payment can go into a Post Office card account or - in some circumstances - onto 
a Simple Payment card.

Wirral’s Housing & Homelessness Division has responsibility for the Council’s Statutory 
Homelessness Response, commissioning of supported housing services (e.g. homeless hostels, 
emergency accommodation etc.), liaising with private landlords (accreditation, selective 
licensing and enforcement action.)

The Council commissions 393 bed spaces for single homelessness in Wirral who may not be 
able to support tenancies individually.  Some of these bed spaces are for families but are 
limited to teenage parents. Within these tenancies linked to Universal Credit, these bed spaces 
are classed as “specified accommodation” meaning that the Council’s Housing Benefits team 
will still pay directly to the supported housing provider for the rent cost of that services.  It is 
understood that there is some confusion due to the lack of understanding by the claimant as to 
whether they are liable for these rental payments.   

One of the key emerging issues identified by Wirral’s Housing & Homelessness Division and 
supported housing providers for homeless people, is the requirement to use IT to make a claim 
- which is leading to difficulties for some homeless people as discussed earlier in this report.  
The key issues identified from feedback are that:

 Not all homeless people have access to IT technology / email addresses.
 Older homeless people are likely to experience anxiety and confusion with the process.
 Services are spending increased time supporting people to make applications using IT.
 Proof of identification is needed to make a claim – many homeless people will not have 

any ID which leads to delays.
 Despite having applicant consent, hostel staff are experiencing difficulties in discussing 

applications with the DWP.

Page 34



Early Impact of Universal Credit - Scrutiny Workshops Report Page 9 of 19

 Many homeless people present with complex behaviours (Substance misuse, mental 
health etc.) and experience difficulties in retaining information leading to difficulties in 
remembering log-in / account details.

Other feedback on emerging issues identified that the minimum 5/6 week processing time for 
new Universal Credit applications was leading to hardship, resulting in some service charge 
arrears but hostel providers are working to mitigate these and support those homeless clients 
that are struggling.  It was also highlighted that placement in temporary accommodation 
triggers a migration from legacy benefits to Universal Credit for eligible clients and there have 
been cases where this has potentially resulted in a reduction in benefits.  The case study below 
was presented at the workshop and highlights a typical example of this.

Other feedback provided by Wirral’s Housing & Homelessness Division and supported housing 
providers is that there are some issues around the reluctance of private landlords in Wirral to 
rehouse any tenants in receipt of Universal Credit due to a lack of assurance that they will 
receive the rental payments, especially from those presenting with more complex needs.  
Members were informed that the DWP was looking at ‘Alternate Payments Arrangements’ 
similar to those established with Housing Associations where rental payments can be made 
direct to the providers.    

Council officers reiterated that the full impact of Universal Credit has yet to be realised for the 
impact on housing related issues and that more data will be needed to form more informed 
conclusions.

Social Housing Sector

Magenta Living is Wirral’s largest social housing provider and was also part of the DWP’s 
Trusted Partner Pilot which was developed as a result of concerns raised by social landlords 
during the development of Universal Credit.  The benefit of this is that rent no longer needs to 
be requested to be paid directly to landlords.  Magenta Living can now simply authorise those 
rent payments it wishes to be paid directly instead of having to make requests to do this.  As 

Case Study – Homeless single parent aged 18 years old

 Presented at Housing Options with 5 month old baby and attending college. She was 
sleeping on her sister’s couch due to a relationship breakdown and receiving Income 
Support, Child Tax Credit and Child Benefit. A change of circumstances triggered a 
migration to Universal Credit, which upon application ceased her legacy benefits.

 Team sourced a Private rented property at her eligible Local Housing Allowance rate 
of £445.16. Citizens Advice Wirral worker completed an affordability and income 
maximisation exercise with client. Previous benefit entitlement was Income Support 
at £73.10 per week, equivalent to £317 per month.  As client is aged under-25 years 
old, the standard allowance on Universal credit is £251 per month. Resultantly, client 
income has been reduced by £66 per month following migration to Universal Credit.
 

Team sourced a Private rented property at her eligible Local Housing 
Allowance rate of £445.16. CAB worker completed an affordability and income 
maximisation exercise with client. Previous benefit entitlement was Income 
Support at £73.10 per week, equivalent to £317 per month.  As client is aged 
under-25 years old, the standard allowance on Universal credit is £251 
per month. Resultantly, client income has been reduced by £66 per 
month, following migration to UC. 

Page 35



Early Impact of Universal Credit - Scrutiny Workshops Report Page 10 of 19

part of the full roll out of Universal Credit, it was confirmed that Magenta Living would keep the 
ability to continue authorising payments.

As at February 2018, it was reported that:

 833 tenants were claiming Universal Credit out of its 12,900 tenancies;  
 Average tenant arrears has reduced from £197 to £178 following the Universal Credit 

Full Service;
 Rent collection is at 100.4%;
 38% of tenants are on Alternative Payment Arrangements; and
 There has been an increase in workload but the overall number of tenants in arrears and 

level of arrears continues to decrease. 

A number of early observations provided by Magenta Living did not convey the same message 
as other representatives at the workshop.  In particular, it was reported that there was little 
evidence of tenants being unable to cope with the digital nature of Universal Credit and that 
tenants seemed to understand it and their obligations.  However, it is noted that Magenta 
works with a cross section of claimants as other agencies work more closely with the claimants 
who are struggling for one reason or another.  

Magenta Living also has Income Officers who have a high level of understanding of Universal 
Credit through improved links with the DWP nationally and locally; and are able to provide 
support and quality advice to its tenants. This includes help with their online claims and the 
setting up of email accounts.  Under Full Service, DWP Work Coaches are in contact with 
Magenta Living’s Income Officers to convey any concerns they have and to see if any help can 
be provided.  

The Income Manager from Magenta Living informed Members that:

 The number of tenants claiming Universal Credit will increase to approximately 4,500 by 
2021/22;

 New claims will increase from 24 per week to 40 per week and then higher again during 
the period while claimants are migrated to Universal Credit from existing benefits;

 There will be a higher proportion of vulnerable claimants when migration proceeds; and
 There are concerns with the capacity of both Magenta Living and the DWP to cope with 

major increases in workload. 

3.3 Financial implications

Officers and representatives at both workshop sessions discussed some of the emerging and 
potential financial impacts for residents with the roll-out of Universal Credit.  These are 
summarised below.  

Waiting period and First Payment 
The early introduction of Universal Credit had an initial seven day waiting period before 
entitlement began but this was removed from 14th February 2018.  However, payments for new 
claims are taking a minimum of five weeks due to the first monthly assessment period and the 
payment being made seven days after the end of the assessment period.  There were concerns 
from both Members and third representatives at the workshops that this could cause hardship 

Page 36



Early Impact of Universal Credit - Scrutiny Workshops Report Page 11 of 19

for many claimants.  Although anecdotal evidence was discussed around some particular cases 
of hardship for Wirral residents, it was too early to understand the full impact this has had 
without more quantitative and qualitative analysis over a longer period of time.  

It is noted that advance payments of Universal Credit can be made by the DWP for new 
claimants who may struggle to meet essential expenditure.  These are only granted when the 
DWP considers that the Universal Credit claim looks likely to result in an award and claimants 
can receive an advance of up to 100% of their overall entitlement (recoverable over twelve 
months).  The Council’s Local Welfare Assistance Scheme is therefore likely to be relied upon to 
provide immediate support to those suffering hardship during this time.  Those entitled to the 
rent element of Universal Credit are also still entitled to apply for further assistance with their 
rent through the Discretionary Housing Payment scheme, which continues to be administered 
by the Council.

Citizens Advice Wirral reported that up to December 2017, only 52% of their clients took up 
advance payments.  It was stated that Universal Credit claimants would have to choose 
between managing their expenditure through the initial waiting period until the first payment is 
made, or take the advance payment but have reduced future Universal Credit payments until 
repayments are made.  Feedback provided from the Feeding Birkenhead Network highlighted a 
concern that even taking out a small percentage from their payments is leading to hardship.  It 
is also aware of some instances where hardship is being exploited by loan sharks and doorstop 
lenders which may trigger a spiral of chronic debt.

Following the workshops, Housing Benefit ‘run-on’ was introduced from 11th April and anyone 
already receiving Housing Benefit who transfers onto Universal Credit will now receive an extra 
two weeks' pay to help with rent over the first Universal Credit assessment period.

Wirral Council and the DWP set up a funded DWP local partnership agreement from July 2014.  
This is based on the national model and is an arrangement the DWP actively encourages local 
authorities to support.  ‘Assisted Digital’ is one of the services provided within the agreement 
and enables One Stop Shops to provide face-to-face support for customers who require help 
and support with the Universal Credit on-line claim process including using assistance with 
setting up an email address, ID verification on-line and to create a Universal Credit account.    ID 
verification appointments are supposed to be within three working days but it was reported 
that it currently stands at nine.   

Take up of Personal Budgeting Support
Personal Budgeting Support is another service provided as part of the Council’s partnership 
agreement with the DWP. It supports claimants who need help managing their money and 
paying their bills on time as they transition onto Universal Credit. However, Members were 
informed that take up of these services is low and that better promotion, for example at the 
Job Centre sites, would be required moving forward.  Citizens Advice Wirral reported that many 
claimants do not want to share information with workers at organisations who they may owe 
money to e.g. council tax arrears and often get people presenting to them who have not 
wanted to take up the personal budgeting support from the Council.

Fluctuations in Universal Credit payments
Universal Credit is reviewed monthly with the previous month’s income used as the basis to 
determine the next award.  However, this means that any changes in earnings will result in 

Page 37



Early Impact of Universal Credit - Scrutiny Workshops Report Page 12 of 19

fluctuations to Universal Credit amounts being paid, including housing costs.  There are 
concerns that workers doing variable shift work, workers on zero hour contracts and people 
who are self-employed will have cash flow problems which may lead to instances of hardship. 
The Welfare Rights Team reported that some clients they have worked with are experiencing 
difficulty on Universal Credit due to changes to their benefit rate each month. 

Sanctions / deductions
Members heard that the rules about sanctions under Universal Credit may result in more 
people being sanctioned than the previous benefits system.  All claimants in receipt of 
Universal Credit can be sanctioned with the level dependent on the conditionality group you 
are placed in and results in benefit being cut or reduced.  Sanctions can be applied for a 
number of reasons, including failing to turn up for interviews or failing to turn up to work.  

The Feeding Birkenhead Network informed members that the application of sanctions is one of 
the biggest issues it has been dealing with and cited an example of a client with severe 
disabilities who had an epileptic fit on the way to their Jobcentre appointment. The client was 
taken to hospital after they collapsed, but was then sanctioned for 106 weeks for failing to turn 
up to the appointment and continued to struggle on hardship payments.  

There are also implications around deductions being applied to Universal Credit payments.  
Deductions could be made by the DWP for previous benefit and tax credits overpayments and 
certain third party debts such as council tax and rent arrears.  Citizens Advice Wirral, in 
particular, is concerned that these deductions are not affordable as they can be up to 40% of 
the standard allowance.  Under the legacy benefits, deductions of no more than £5 per week 
were made.  

It was acknowledged that even though the full impact of Universal Credit has yet to be realised, 
it is anticipated that the number of sanctions applied may increase over time.  However, It is 
also understood that the Job Centre Plus sites appear to be taking a realistic/sympathetic 
approach to claimant capabilities with claimant commitments not being overly onerous for 
those who have vulnerabilities.

Lack of transitional arrangements
Representatives at the workshop highlighted the lack of transitional arrangements from moving 
over to Universal Credit from the legacy benefits.  Previously, if a claimant moved from one 
benefit to another (e.g. Job Seekers Allowance to Income Support), there would be a gradual 
change in the benefit amount paid to the new value.  Under Universal Credit, this does not exist 
and an observation from some representatives is that the severe cut in moving over to 
Universal Credit has impacted some claimants.

Impact on disabled people
A disability premium is an extra amount automatically added to a claimant’s Income Support or 
income-based Jobseeker’s Allowance (JSA) if the claimant qualifies.  It is understood that under 
Universal Credit, Severe Disability Premiums will no longer be made to those claimants who 
were previously in receipt of them and that this will result in a reduction in benefit of £62.45 
per week. Enhanced Disability Premium has also been removed and it is reported that claimants 
would see a reduction in benefit of £69 per month. Support given by Severe Disability 
Premiums is now provided through Personal Independence Payments (PIP) - which can be 

Page 38



Early Impact of Universal Credit - Scrutiny Workshops Report Page 13 of 19

claimed by anyone - and social care from local authorities.  The impact of this may result in 
additional financial hardship to those claimants affected by the changes.

Free School Meals
Before the introduction of Universal Credit, children could receive free school meals if their 
family received any of a number of benefits, such as income support or jobseeker’s allowance.  
From 2013, children in all families moving to Universal Credit have been eligible for free school 
meals but the government has introduced a new income threshold to replace this from April 
2018.  It has been suggested by Members that the impact of this new threshold will increase 
the number of children living in relative poverty in Wirral.  

As Universal Credit is a monthly benefit, it is taking 5-6 weeks for applications to be 
determined.  It is only at this point that an automatic check is made to identify if there is 
entitlement to Free School Meals, but it was explained to Members that the first six weeks is 
the period when claimants would need the most help.   Wirral Council subsequently has made a 
decision to award Free School Meals where there was evidence that a claim had been made.  
There was an intention for this to continue into the new financial year but it was explained that 
Wirral Council is waiting for clarification on new criteria affecting working parents.  

Wirral Council has been actively engaged in maximising take-up of Free School Meals with the 
Councils Press and Public Relations Team and it is positive that there has been an increase in 
take-up before the end of the financial year deadline.  Members are conscious that the impact 
of the new threshold will need to be monitored.

Council Tax Support
Council Tax Support is not included as part of Universal Credit and claimants are responsible for 
applying for it locally themselves.  However, encouraging people to take up Council Tax Support 
has been challenging. Citizens Advice Wirral reported that some of its claimants are reporting a 
lack of support to access Council Tax Support separately and there is confusion as it is believed 
that it is part of Universal Credit (despite the DWP and Wirral Council’s continual promotion).  
Officers acknowledged the ongoing challenge and will continue to deliver targeted Council Tax 
Support take up campaigns.

Use of Foodbanks
Wirral Foodbank, which is part of the Trussell Trust, reported that 4% of its clients accessing the 
Foodbank are awaiting or are in receipt of Universal Credit. Nationally, in areas of Universal 
Credit Full Service that have been rolled out for six months or more, there has been a 30% 
average increase compared to the previous year with approximately 3,387 people requiring 
foodbank assistance and an additional 30 tonnes of food required.  It was reported that 
Foodbanks are reporting extra pressure on food stocks and several have highlighted concerns 
about volunteers’ time and emotional welfare.   For Wirral, the true impact of Universal Credit 
on the use of foodbanks is yet to be realised but there is an expectation that there will be an 
increase over time.  

It was explained that Wirral Foodbank took time to speak to those people who were referred to 
them to learn their circumstances and reasons for needing food, such as debt problems, to 
provide additional advice and guidance. In partnership with Citizens Advice Wirral, Wirral 
Foodbank has opened a service called Wirral Food Bank Plus.  Funding for two years has been 
secured to have a Citizens Advice advisor based at the food bank

Page 39

https://consult.education.gov.uk/healthy-pupil-unit/fsm/supporting_documents/Consultation%20%20Free%20school%20meals%20and%20EYPP%20under%20Universal%20Credit.pdf


Early Impact of Universal Credit - Scrutiny Workshops Report Page 14 of 19

3.4 Impact of Universal Credit on Wirral Council 

Senior Council officers highlighted the impact of Universal Credit Full Service for the Council 
and are summarised below.

Increased work volumes
The graph below (fig. 2) shows the increase in Universal Credit live claims since 2014 and it is 
expected that this number will spike with further increases over the next twelve months.

(Fig. 2 -  Universal Credit claimants by age Dec 2017)

As a result of the increasing Universal Credit live claims; there has been a significant increase in 
transaction volumes for the Benefits Team for processing.  These include ending Housing 
Benefit claims for new Universal Credit claimants to avoid overpayments being made and 
having to reclaim them directly from future Universal Credit payments. There is also a demand 
on recalculating Council Tax Support based on Universal Credit income and maximising its take 
to reach all claimants in Wirral.  It was reported that Universal Credit now equates to 30% of all 
processes.   

The impact has also been felt on an increase in customer contact via the One Stop Shops, Call 
Centre and email enquiries and there is an increase in the length of interviews which results in 
fewer appointments being made available. One Stop Shops reported that from April 2017 to 
November 2017, there were 25 instances of general support being provided relating to 
Universal Credit but this jumped to 515 for the period of November 2017 to February 2018.  To 
support the Call Centre at busier times, calls are rerouted to the back office after two minutes.  
This was introduced in the summer of 2017 and it was reported as working well.  

Members highlighted the impact that full migration may have for the Council and remained 
cautious on the ability of both the Council and DWP to ensure there is sustainability to maintain 
services and support. At the time of the workshops, the full timescale for full migration was 
unknown and there is some concern at how the DWP would manage the migration of cases 
from the legacy benefits to Universal Credit.

Council Tax Recovery
Officers reported that there has been no immediate increase in Council Tax recovery action 
since the roll out of Universal Credit.  Wirral works with benchmarking groups consisting of 25 
other local authorities and meets regularly.  Feedback provided indicates that there is no 
overall impact that can be attributed solely to Universal Credit, but it is acknowledged that it is 

Page 40



Early Impact of Universal Credit - Scrutiny Workshops Report Page 15 of 19

possibly too early to analyse any trends. As previously highlighted, officers stressed the 
importance of promoting Council Tax Support to avoid recovery action being taken. If a 
claimant is summonsed, a liability order can be imposed by the court and direct deductions can 
be made from Universal Credit with a maximum amount of £3.85 per week. However, this also 
depends on a hierarchy of other deductions from Universal Credit as to whether it can be 
recovered. As at February 2018, it was reported that:

 There were 4557 current liability orders with direct deduction from all benefit types and 
this is likely to increase;

 793 of these claim Universal Credit;
 6926 more liability orders for all benefit types are queued for action;
 Monthly direct deduction collection has dropped from £58K in 2015/16 to £48K in 

2017/18 (due to the DWP accepting other deductions and the significant wait to be 
informed by the DWP that a deductions can either be made or not); and

 Universal Credit has an impact on collection but is not the sole cause.
 
Partnership Working 
Members were informed that, despite the challenge of the roll-out of Universal Credit, a major 
success has been the established partnership working with the DWP since 2014 which was not 
present before. The key successes have been:

 The clear understanding of the roles and responsibilities to Wirral’s customers;
 Co-operation and support in maximising Council Tax Support and Free School Meals    

     acknowledging that both aspects are important to not only the residents of Wirral but 
     also for revenue;

 Named contacts in the DWP service centre for individual case resolution to prevent the 
     impact on the vulnerable and urgent cases; and

 A clear route for more complex cases, such as specified accommodation issues.

4) SUMMARY OF CONCLUSIONS 

The two Universal Credit scrutiny workshops gave Members an understanding of Universal 
Credit and the early impact it has had and may have following the implementation of Full 
Service.  Each workshop gave Members an opportunity to ask further questions, comment on 
any particular issues of what was presented to them and to express any concerns moving 
forward.  A summary of these is detailed below:

1) The requirement of applying and managing Universal Credit claims online remains a 
concern for those claimants who are IT illiterate and in particular, the challenge faced 
when the number of claimants who will be on Universal Credit substantially increases in 
the future. 

2) The role of Wirral’s libraries to provide free IT access for residents was acknowledged, 
but Members highlighted the uncertainty of the library service in the future and what 
these will be delivering. 

3) As with the digital challenge, Members remained concerned for those more vulnerable 
in Wirral and the high level of support that will be needed to guide them through the 
process to ensure that nobody falls through the net.

Page 41



Early Impact of Universal Credit - Scrutiny Workshops Report Page 16 of 19

4) Members welcomed the efforts to maximise Free School Meals in schools across Wirral 
through its promotional activities and the policy to make awards during the waiting 
period in the Universal Credit application process.

5) The relationship with the DWP locally was noted as a positive aspect but there was a 
concern that this may not be maintained going forward if the DWP undergoes any major 
changes.  

6) Members were very appreciative of the work Council officers were doing as part of the 
roll-out of Universal Credit.  However, there was a concern around the potential need 
for additional resources being required to maintain the administration and support for 
claimants with no additional budget being made available.

7) Although the purpose of sanctions was acknowledged, the impact of any reduction in 
disposable income from those who have been sanctioned and living under hardship was 
worrying.

8) Members welcomed the close working relationship that existed between all the 
representatives invited to the workshop, which provided a shared understanding of 
many of the identified and emerging issues of Universal Credit.

Members acknowledged that the roll-out of Universal Credit Full Service is still in its infancy and 
that the full impact of it has yet to be realised.  Additionally, it was made clear that there may 
be other factors outside of Universal Credit which may contribute to a number of issues 
highlighted in the report.  Members supported the view that further scrutiny workshops should 
be held in the new municipal year when the full impact of Universal Credit becomes clearer.   

Following the scrutiny workshops, a number of representatives who were in attendance 
provided a list of ‘asks’ or issues which the Council could consider to help manage the roll-out 
of Universal Credit.  These are detailed in Appendix 2.

Page 42



Early Impact of Universal Credit - Scrutiny Workshops Report Page 17 of 19

Appendix 1

Summary of Universal Credit Changes

As per a written statement from the Secretary of State for Work and Pensions on 7th June 
2018, the following changes to Universal Credit have been made

 Claimants in receipt of Severe Disability Premium will remain on legacy benefits until 
they move to Universal Credit as part of the managed migration plans, even if they 
experience a change in circumstances.  At this point, they will qualify for transitional 
protection if their legacy entitlement is more than their Universal Credit payment.  
Retrospective protection to any cases that have already moved to Universal Credit will 
be considered.

 Incentives for parents to take up short-term or temporary work will be strengthened by 
making sure receipt of childcare costs does not erode transitional protection

 Short-term increase in earnings will not end transitional protection. This includes 
claimants whose pay cycles or wages temporarily lift them out of Universal Credit 
entitlement. The DWP state it is unfair that people should lose transitional protection, 
simply because they earn more. Therefore the claimant's transitional protection will be 
re-awarded if they make a new claim within 3 months of when they received the 
additional payment.

 Capital over £16,000 to be disregarded for claimants we move from tax credits to 
Universal Credit for twelve months. After this time, the normal rules will apply and it will 
be expected claimants with a high level of personal resources to fund themselves.

Page 43



Early Impact of Universal Credit - Scrutiny Workshops Report Page 18 of 19

Appendix 2

Post-Scrutiny Workshop Feedback – Suggested Actions

The summary below details a number of suggested actions provided by the representatives of 
the third sector organisations in attendance at the scrutiny workshops for the Council to 
consider as Universal Credit is being rolled out.

Nationally - Asks of the Government

 Advanced loan to become a payment that claimants do not have to repay.
 Apply the same premiums that were provided in the legacy benefits - Severe disability 

premium (£62.45 per week), Enhanced Disability Premium (£15.90 per week) and the 
£65 per month for lone parents under the age of 25.

 If these premiums are not re-introduced; transitional arrangements should be put in 
place to help those claimants budget for the lower income over a longer period of time.

 The amount that can be taken from the claimant e.g. paying back previous 
overpayments or fines to be capped at a maximum of £5 per week, not 20% of the 
standard allowance.

DWP locally

 Increase the number of appointments available for ID checks (there is currently a 9 day 
wait).

 For vulnerable clients - longer appointments to support them to do the ID checks, make 
the claim, and meet their Work Coach. This would reduce the number of times 
claimants would have to travel to the jobcentre to make a claim.

Council

 Holistic, targeted support put in place for very vulnerable adults who do not have the 
capacity to navigate the complex system themselves e.g. refugees, people with mental 
health problems, people with learning disabilities etc.   

 Advocacy support needs to be provided to support people at medical assessments for 
benefits to ensure their true situation is assessed, and the wrong decision is not made. 

 Building the councils Welfare Rights capacity given that the number of new UC cases will 
dramatically increase over the next 18 months. 

 Wirral reviews its delivery of Personal Budgeting Support (PBS) to encourage take up of 
the service.  It is possible that the way it is being delivered is dissuading claimants to 
take up the service.  Consideration should be given to determine whether Wirral is 
securing best value from the £150,000 per year funding supplied by the DWP for the 
service.

 Support for vulnerable claimants should be increased.  When they are identified by the 
DWP, the referral for personal budgeting support or ICT support should ideally result in 
a proactive approach from Wirral.  When someone who contacts the claimant by phone 
to discuss their issues, the appropriate support should be arranged in a timely manner.

 Wirral Council should review their current practice of only granting Discretionary 
Housing Payments to UC claimants for 3 months.  

Page 44



Early Impact of Universal Credit - Scrutiny Workshops Report Page 19 of 19

 To avoid duplication and to ensure the claimant is provided with the best level of 
support, the Council should liaise with social landlords.  Links are developing between 
Magenta and the DWP locally but there is nothing similar developing between Magenta 
and those in the Council providing personal budgeting support.

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



1

BUSINESS OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
 JULY 2018   

REPORT TITLE Update on Liverpool City Region developments

REPORT OF Rose Boylan, Policy & Strategy Manager

REPORT SUMMARY

This report sets out a brief overview of latest developments at the Liverpool City Region 
(LCR), including activity underway to implement the City Region devolution deal.

This matter affects all Wards within the Borough.

This is not a key decision.

RECOMMENDATION/S

Committee is requested to note and comment on latest developments.

Page 47

Agenda Item 8



2

SUPPORTING INFORMATION
1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S
Committee have requested regular updates and consideration of City Region developments. 

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED
2.1  N/a

3.0 LATEST DEVELOPMENTS 
The Annual Meeting of the LCR Combined Authority recently took place, and included an 
overview of key developments and achievements from the last year, as well as setting out 
some key priorities for the coming months. 

3.1. Key developments
The last 12 months has been establishing the Metro Mayor’s office and the CA 
constitution, governance structures and statutory officers to accelerate delivery of LCR 
priorities.

The CA has made investment decisions totalling £100m during 17/18 as part of a wider 
investment programme of over £1bn in transport, skills, economic development and 
housing. 

3.2. Employment and Skills
 As previously discussed at this Committee, the LCR Skills Strategy has now been 

developed and approved
 The Work and Health Programme went live in November 2017. The CA secured 

£3.5m from Government towards the Households into Work Programme - 24 
employment advocates will work on a household basis to support 1,600 people in 
800 households

 Capital Investment to the value of £30m in 40 projects with further £8m applications 
in process, focused on growth sectors and technical skills

 Developed and launched the Apprenticeship Growth Plan to with target of 20,000 
apprenticeships by 2020

 Preparing for Adult Education Budget devolution

3.3. Housing and Planning
 The LCR is producing the non-statutory plan identifying key strategic housing and 

employment sites 
 The LCR Brownfield Register has been produced
 Evidence work (‘SHELMA’) on Spatial Development Strategy developed and 

reviewed by the LCR Scrutiny Panel
 Secured £7.8 million to deliver a ‘Housing First’ approach to homelessness
 Work on City Region Housing Strategy is now underway

3.4. Business innovation and Growth
 The LCR has secured £5m to support growth of digital and creative businesses 

through the LCR Activate programme

Page 48



3

 The CA has invested in a range of significant developments, including Alstom NW 
Technology Centre, Widnes - leveraging £30m of private sector investment with 
£5m of CA funding; and Seqirus, the world’s second largest influenza vaccine 
manufacturer 

 Digital transformation – work has started on a city region full-fibre network, 
providing ultra-fast digital connectivity across the whole of the city region

3.5. Clean Green energy
 The Mersey Tidal Commission (MTC) was established in January 2018 chaired by 

Brent Cheshire, set up the Mersey Tidal Special Purpose Vehicle (wholly owned by 
the CA) with technical, legal and financial advisors to develop a business case

 The commitment to low emission buses continues to be driven forward – these now 
make up 70% of bus fleet, with one fifth of those powered by electricity

 A feasibility study is underway to look in depth at issues of poor air quality 
 Funding has been secured to commission an Energy Strategy

3.6 Future developments
 Work is underway to use the LCR Brexit Sounding Board to channel City Region’s  

issues and concerns into the Mayor’s ministerial negotiations
 The LCR will produce our Local Industrial Strategy with government and with local 

partners to maximise post-Brexit funding and support inclusive economic growth 
 Develop a Fair Employment Charter
 Continue to work with Government to progress the City Region case for a direct, 

high speed west-east rail link into High Speed 2
 Discussions are continuing to develop and progress further devolution asks around 

new funding and powers
 Complete and implement Digital Infrastructure Action Plan
 Progress new, innovative funding sources eg Urban Development Fund loan for 

businesses

3.7 Conclusion
Further updates on all of the above will be brought back to this Committee as the detail 
emerges in coming months. As previously stated, the above is just a short snapshot of 
LCR activity, and further detail on all of the most recent developments can be found here 
http://liverpoolcityregion-ca.gov.uk/

4.0      FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
The Devolution arrangements propose the devolution of financial resources to LCR.

5.0     LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
N/a

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: ICT, STAFFING AND ASSETS
At this time, no additional cost is expected to be incurred by LCR local authorities as a 
result of arrangements to deliver the devolution deal. 

Page 49

http://liverpoolcityregion-ca.gov.uk/


4

7.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 
Wirral, along with City Region partners, continues to brief members and officers; circulate 
information and raise awareness of LCR developments through a wide range of 
approaches and communications. 

8.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS
There are no direct equality implications associated with this report as it deals with the 
issue of devolution at a strategic level. Equality analysis will be carried out as part of the 
detailed implementation as appropriate.

REPORT AUTHOR: Rose Boylan, Policy and Strategy Manager
0151 691 8037
rosemaryboylan@wirral.gov.uk

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date
Cabinet
Cabinet
Cabinet and Council
Cabinet and Council
Council
P&P Regeneration & Environment Committee
P&P Regeneration & Environment Committee
Council
Cabinet 
Council
Business Overview & Scrutiny Committee
Business Overview & Scrutiny Committee
Business Overview & Scrutiny Committee
Business Overview & Scrutiny Committee
Business Overview & Scrutiny Committee
Business Overview & Scrutiny Committee
Business Overview & Scrutiny Committee
Business Overview & Scrutiny Committee

12 July 2013
8 August 2013
19 September 2013
10 March 2014
19 November 2015
18 January 2016
2 March 2016
13 September 2016
14 November 2016
8 December 2016
6 December 2016
24 January 2017
29 March 2017
4 July 2017
19 September 2017
29 November 2017
23 January 2018
27th March 2018

Page 50

mailto:rosemaryboylan@wirral.gov.uk


Business Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
4 July 2018

REPORT TITLE: LIVERPOOL CITY REGION COMBINED 
AUTHORITY – OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE UPDATE 

REPORT OF: THE CHAIR OF THE COMMITTEE, 
COUNCILLOR MIKE SULLIVAN

REPORT SUMMARY

This report is to give Members an overview of the work of the Liverpool City Region 
Combined Authority Overview & Scrutiny Committee.

RECOMMENDATION/S
Members are requested to note the contents of the report which provides an 
update on the developments of the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee.

Page 51

Agenda Item 9



SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

To ensure members of the Business Overview & Scrutiny Committee are 
updated on the work of the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority 
Overview & Scrutiny 

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED
Not Applicable

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 The Liverpool City Region Combined Authority (LCRCA) consists of the six 
local authority areas covering Halton, Knowsley, St Helens, Sefton, Liverpool 
and Wirral.  Membership includes the Liverpool City Region Metro Mayor, five
local authority leaders of Halton, Knowsley, Sefton, St Helens and Wirral 
Councils, the elected Mayor of Liverpool City Council and the Chair of the 
Local Enterprise Partnership.  

3.2 The LCRA is a strategic authority with powers over transport, economic 
development and regeneration. Transport policy of the combined authority is 
delivered by the Merseytravel functional body.  The Combined Authority also 
works with the Liverpool City Region Local Enterprise Partnership to promote 
and deliver economic growth and to ensure that the views of businesses are 
represented in strategic decision making.

3.3 To hold the directly elected Mayor of the Combined Authority to account, the 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee will: 

 Provide a ‘critical friend’ challenge to policy and strategy development;
 Undertake scrutiny reviews into areas of strategic importance for the 

people of the Liverpool City Region; and
 Monitor the delivery of the Authority’s strategic plan.

4.0 APPOINTMENTS TO THE LCRCA OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
2018/19

4.1 Each constituent Council of the Liverpool City Region has appointed 
members of that constituent Council to the Liverpool City Region Combined 
Authority Overview & Scrutiny Committee.  The Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee for 2018/19 is made up of 20 Members as follows:

 3 Members from each constituent Council. 
 1 Member from the largest opposition party as calculated across the 

LCR geography as directed collectively by the largest opposition party. 
 1 Member from the second largest opposition party as calculated 

across the LCR geography as directed collectively by the second 
largest opposition party.

Page 52

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Merseytravel


4.2 The membership of the LCRCA Overview & Scrutiny Committee for 2018/19 
is detailed in the table below:

Cllr. Mike Sullivan (Labour)
Cllr. Jean Stapleton (Labour)
Cllr. Tom Anderson (Conservative)

Wirral

Cllr. Paula Murphy (Labour)
Cllr. Samantha Marshall (Labour)
To be confirmed  (Labour)

Sefton

Cllr. Ken McGlashan (Labour)
Cllr. Edna Finneran (Labour)
Cllr. Carl Cashman (Liberal Democrat)

Knowsley

Cllr. T O’Brien (Labour)
Cllr. P Hurley (Labour)
To be confirmed (Labour)

Liverpool

Cllr. David Baines (Labour)
Cllr. Martin Bond (Labour)
Cllr. Nova Charlton (Labour)

St. Helens

Cllr. Kevan Wainwright (Labour)
Cllr. Bill Woolfall (Labour)
To be confirmed  (Labour)

Halton

One Member from the largest opposition 
party as calculated across the LCR 
geography as directed collectively by the 
largest opposition party.
(To be confirmed)

One Member from the second largest 
opposition party as calculated across the 
LCR geography as directed collectively 
by the second largest opposition party.

Cllr. Dr. John Pugh

Sefton

5.0 COMMITTEE TIMETABLE AND WORK PLANNING

5.1 The LCRCA Overview & Scrutiny Committee is currently scheduled to meet 
three times in the 2018/19 municipal year (5th September 2018, 5th December 
2018 and 6th March 2019).  A meeting on 8th June has been cancelled due to 
a number of appointed Members recently taking up positions of Deputy 
Portfolio Holders of the LCR Combined Authority.  There is now a 
requirement to appoint new Members to the Committee.  

Page 53



5.2 Subject to availability, the meeting originally scheduled for 8th June will be 
rearranged to enable a Chair and Vice Chair for the Committee to be formally 
appointed.  

5.3 A work programme planning session to identify topics for scrutiny review is to 
be arranged.  These will be a combination of officer report and Task & Finish 
Reviews and will be presented to Committee for approval.

6.0 SUMMARY OF TASK & FINISH SCRUTINY REVIEWS COMPLETED IN 
2017/18

6.1 Three Task & Finish scrutiny reviews were undertaken in the 2017/18 
municipal year.  These are summarised below. 

6.2 Spatial Development Strategy

This review focused on:-
 The process for preparing the LCR Spatial Development Strategy 

programme;
 The stages needed to be achieved to ensure the adoption of the 

Strategy;
 The ability of the Combined Authorities structure, governance and 

resources to achieve the adoption of the Strategy within the timescales 
set out in the Devolution Deal; and

 A review of best practice of other Combined Authority Spatial 
Development Strategies.

The final report can be found here:
http://liverpoolcityregion-
ca.gov.uk/uploadedfiles/meetings/lcrca_agenda_090318.pdf

6.3 Review into Welfare Reform and Universal Credit 

The objectives of the review were:

 To understand the welfare reforms being introduced by Department for 
Work and Pensions through the rollout of Full Service Universal Credit;

 To capture the experience of the rollout in Halton, the impact on 
residents and services, and to identify the support that would have 
smoothed this process; and

 To identify lessons that can be applied in other areas during rollout.

The final report can be found here:
http://liverpoolcityregion-
ca.gov.uk/uploadedfiles/meetings/LCRCA_OSC_Agenda_180418.pdf

6.4 Review into Air Quality across the Liverpool City Region 

The objective of the review was to examine and challenge the Combined 
Authority’s strategic role in addressing poor air quality across the Liverpool 

Page 54

http://liverpoolcityregion-ca.gov.uk/uploadedfiles/meetings/lcrca_agenda_090318.pdf
http://liverpoolcityregion-ca.gov.uk/uploadedfiles/meetings/lcrca_agenda_090318.pdf
http://liverpoolcityregion-ca.gov.uk/uploadedfiles/meetings/LCRCA_OSC_Agenda_180418.pdf
http://liverpoolcityregion-ca.gov.uk/uploadedfiles/meetings/LCRCA_OSC_Agenda_180418.pdf


City Region, aided by an understanding of the risks to public health that are 
presented, and the plans, policies and proposals of both Authority and the six 
constituent local authorities in seeking to address these air quality problems.

The final report can be found here:
http://liverpoolcityregion-
ca.gov.uk/uploadedfiles/meetings/LCRCA_OSC_Agenda_180418.pdf

7.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Not Applicable

8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

Not Applicable

9.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: ICT, STAFFING AND ASSETS

Not Applicable 

10.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

Not Applicable

11.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 

Not Applicable

12.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

This report is for information to Members and there are no direct equality 
implications.

REPORT AUTHOR: Michael Lester
Scrutiny Officer
0151 691 8628
email:  michaellester@wirral.gov.uk

 
APPENDICES: None
REFERENCE MATERIAL
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date

Page 55

http://liverpoolcityregion-ca.gov.uk/uploadedfiles/meetings/LCRCA_OSC_Agenda_180418.pdf
http://liverpoolcityregion-ca.gov.uk/uploadedfiles/meetings/LCRCA_OSC_Agenda_180418.pdf
mailto:michaellester@wirral.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Business Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Wednesday, 4 July 2018

REPORT TITLE: 2017/18 Quarter 4 and Year End Wirral 
Plan Performance

REPORT OF: Director for Business Services (Assistant 
Chief Executive)

REPORT SUMMARY

This report provides the 2017/18 Quarter 4 (January - March 2018) performance 
report for the Wirral Plan pledges under the remit of the Business Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee. The report, which is included as Appendix 1, provides a 
description of the progress in Quarter 4 as well as providing available data in relation 
to a range of outcome indicators and supporting measures.

The Year End closedown report is included as Appendix 2 and provides a summary 
analysis of improvement of performance against measures and Wirral Plan delivery 
of Pledge strategy actions at year end.

Quarter Four Wirral Plan Performance Summary

 Wirral's employment rate this quarter is 72.6% this is the highest recorded 
figure since reporting started in 2004. Wirral has increased by 1.4% this 
quarter which is more than triple the regional and national average. This has 
resulted in Wirral narrowing the gap with the North West to just 0.4% for the 
first time since September 2015.

 The number of jobs created and safeguarded cumulative performance 
continues at a steady pace with the quarter 4 figure 7% greater than the 
annual target.

 In delivering new business Wirral has increased its performance on last year 
by 420 businesses, an increase of 4.9%, higher than the national average 
increase of 4.5%. Cumulatively, this represents a net additional 1,305 new 
businesses since the 2014-15 baseline position.

 Over £147m of inward investment has been achieved since the start of the 
Plan, current progress is slightly below (4.7%) the target of £154m for 
2017/18 year end however there are key investment projects in the pipeline 
for 2018-20.

 There has been a 6.4% average annual increase in the value of tourism and a 
5.8% average annual increase in visitor numbers since the start of Wirral Plan 

Page 57

Agenda Item 10



 Visit Wirral now has 12,537 Twitter followers a 10% increase on the previous 
year and 903 Facebook likes a 42% increase on the previous year 

 Although there has been a decrease in the number of Wirral Visitor Economy 
Network (WVEN) members in 2017/18 under the new model a range of 
developments have been put in place to enhance the impact of the network. 
These include recruitment of a Head of Tourism, planned work by the 
Business Development Manager to review the current membership offer and 
commissioning of the Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) to develop a 
marketing strategy which will support the WVEN.

 Whilst there was an increase of 5 people killed or seriously injured (KSI) in 
road traffic accidents in 2017 compared to 2016 there has been an overall 
improvement compared to the number of KSI casualties since the start of this 
plan - 127 this year against 140 at the start of the plan period. In order to 
continue to reduce the number of KSI’s a Wirral Road Safety Plan has been 
developed to address the challenges and measures to ensure that the risk to 
all road users is reduced. 

 Capital receipts have been generated in the region of £2.8m of cash receipts 
in 2017/18. Although this figure is below the expected target of £15m there 
were a number of delays in actual receipts which will now be realised in the 
next 2 financial years. A number of receipts are contractually committed and 
will be received during the current year and future years. This falls within the 
time period for the flexible use of Capital Receipts allowed by Government for 
the funding of transformation (revenue) projects.

 116,203 m2 Asset Space was released for disposal or other uses against the 
target of 140,000 m2, of which 31,203m2 was disposed of. Performance in 
2018/19 is expected to further improve and facilitate the building of new 
homes including “extra care” and generate additional income 

RECOMMENDATION
That the Business Overview and Scrutiny Committee note the content of the report 
and highlight any areas requiring further clarification or action. 

Page 58



SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION
1.1 To ensure Members of the Business Overview and Scrutiny Committee have 

the opportunity to scrutinise the performance of the Council and partners in 
relation to delivering the Wirral Plan.

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED
2.1 This report has been developed in line with the approved performance 

management framework for the Wirral Plan.  As such, no other options were 
considered.

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 The Wirral Plan is an outcome-focussed, partnership plan which has 18 
supporting strategies that set out how each of the 20 pledges will be 
delivered.  For each pledge, a partnership group has been established to 
drive forward delivery of the action plans set out in each of the supporting 
strategies.

3.2 A Wirral Plan Performance Management Framework has been developed to 
ensure robust monitoring arrangements are in place.  The Wirral Partnership 
has a robust approach to performance management to ensure all activity is 
regularly monitored and reviewed. 

3.3 Data for the identified indicators is released at different times during the year.  
As a result of this, not all Pledges will have results each quarterly reporting 
period. Some indicators can be reported quarterly and some only on an 
annual basis.  Annual figures are reported in the quarter they become 
available against the 2017/18 year end column.

3.4 For each of the indicators, a trend is shown (better, same or worse).  In most 
cases, this is determined by comparing the latest data with the previous 
reporting period i.e. 2016/17 year end.  In some cases, i.e. where data 
accumulates during the year or is subject to seasonal fluctuations, the trend is 
shown against the same time the previous year.  This is indicated in the key 
at the end of the report.

3.5 For some indicators, targets have been set. Where this is the case, a RAGB 
(red, amber, green, blue) rating is provided against the target and tolerance 
levels set at the start of the reporting period, with blue indicating performance 
targets being exceeded.

3.6 All Wirral Plan performance reports are published on the performance page of 
the Council’s website.  This includes the high level Wirral Plan overview report 
and the detailed pledge reports which include updates on progress on all 
activities set out in the supporting strategy action plans.  The link to this web 
page is set out below:

Page 59



https://www.wirral.gov.uk/about-council/council-performance

3.7 Each of the Wirral Plan Pledges has a Lead Commissioner responsible for 
overseeing effective delivery.  The Lead Commissioners for the Pledges in 
the report at Appendix 1 are as follows:

 Greater job opportunities in Wirral – Alan Evans
 Workforce skills match business needs – Alan Evans
 Increase Inward Investment – Alan Evans
 Thriving small businesses – Alan Evans
 Vibrant Tourism Economy – Alan Evans
 Transport and technology infrastructure fit for the future – Mark Smith
 Assets and buildings are fit for purpose for Wirral’s businesses – Alan 

Evans

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report.

5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report.

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: ICT, STAFFING AND ASSETS
6.1 There are none arising from this report.

7.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

7.1 The performance management framework is aligned to the Council’s risk 
management strategy and both are regularly reviewed as part of corporate 
management processes.

8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 

8.1 The priorities in the Wirral Plan pledges were informed by a range of 
consultations carried out in 2015 and 2016 including the Wirral resident 
survey.

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

9.1 The Wirral Plan equality impact assessment can be found at:
https://www.wirral.gov.uk/communities-and-neighbourhoods/equality-impact-
assessments/equality-impact-assessments-2014-15/chief

Page 60

https://www.wirral.gov.uk/about-council/council-performance
https://www.wirral.gov.uk/communities-and-neighbourhoods/equality-impact-assessments/equality-impact-assessments-2014-15/chief
https://www.wirral.gov.uk/communities-and-neighbourhoods/equality-impact-assessments/equality-impact-assessments-2014-15/chief


REPORT AUTHOR: Nancy Clarkson
Head of Intelligence
telephone:  (0151) 691 8258
email:   nancyclarkson@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES
Appendix 1: Wirral Plan Business Committee 2017-18 Quarter 4 Pledge Reports

Appendix 2: Wirral Plan Business 2017-18 Year End Closedown Report

REFERENCE MATERIAL
N/A

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date
Business Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Business Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Business Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Business Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Business Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Business Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Business Overview and Scrutiny Committee

13 September 2016
29 November 2016
29 March 2017
4 July 2017
19 September 2017
29 November 2017
27 March 2018

Page 61

mailto:nancyclarkson@wirral.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Wirral Plan Business Theme

2017-18 Quarter 4 Reports

Wirral Plan 2020

Appendix 1

P
age 63



Wirral Plan Indicator Indicator 
Wirral Plan 

Start
Benchmark Data

Year End

2016-17

2017-18 

Q1

2017-18 

Q2

2017-18 

Q3

2017-18 

Q4

Year End

2017-18 

Trend

(See 

Key)

Comment

Increase the number of jobs 

created and safeguarded 

(via Wirral Chamber Data 

Reporting)

Quarterly

Higher is better

970

(2014-15)

2,081

(2016-17)

Green

Actual: 194

Target: 195

(Apr-Jun 2017)

Green

Actual: 394

Target: 390

(Apr-Sept 2017)

Red

Actual: 506

Target: 585

(Apr-Dec 2017)

Green

Actual: 1,041

Target: 973

(Q4 17-18)

Green

Actual: 3,122

Target: 3,054

(2015-18)

Better

Performance as reported by Wirral Chamber represents 7% over-performance against the 

annual out-turn target. Jobs recorded this quarter include those achieved through seasonal 

recruitment support for The Contact Company and subsequently retained post-season.

Increase the employment 

rate in Wirral

Quarterly

Higher is better

66.7

(2014-15)

England: 78.4 (Jan 2017 - 

Dec 2017)

North West: 76.5 (Jan 

2017 - Dec 2017)

69.7

(Apr 2015 - 

Mar 2016)

70.8

(Apr 2016 - Mar 

2017)

71.3

(Jul 2016 - Jun 

2017)

71.2

(Oct 2016 - Sept 

2017)

72.6

(Jan 17-Dec 17)

72.6

(Jan 17-Dec 17)
Better

Wirral's employment rate this quarter is 72.6% this is the highest recorded figure since 

reporting started in 2004. Wirral has increased by 1.4% this quarter which is more than triple 

the regional and national average. This has resulted in Wirral narrowing the gap with the NW 

to just 0.4% for the first time since September 2015.

Supporting Measure Indicator 
Wirral Plan 

Start
Benchmark Data

Year End

2016-17

2017-18

Q1

2017-18 

Q2

2017-18 

Q3

2017-18 

Q4

Year End

2017-18
Trend Comment

Percentage of working age 

people claiming out-of-work 

benefits (economic in-

activity)

Quarterly

Lower is better

13.40%

(2014-15)

England: 8.10% (Nov 

2016)

North West: 10.10% 

(Nov 2016)

12.20%

(2016-17)

12.00%

(Nov 2016)
n/a

Unfortunately due to the full roll out of Universal Credit, the Department for Work & Pensions 

(DWP) will no longer be releasing this data set. DWP plan to reconfigure their StatXplore Tool 

with a revised dataset for unemployment benefits; when established, a new measure may be 

possible to develop for the 2018/19 financial year to support the Greater Job Opportunities 

pledge for the remaining years of the Wirral Plan.

Wirral Plan Indicator Indicator 
Wirral Plan 

Start
Benchmark Data

Year End

2016-17

2017-18 

Q1

2017-18 

Q2

2017-18 

Q3

2017-18 

Q4

Year End

2017-18 

Trend

(See 

Key)

Comment

Reduce the Employer Skills 

Gap in Wirral

Annual

Lower is better

15.0%

(2015)
n/a This target is bi-annual and results of the 2017 survey will be reported in Summer 2018

Greater job opportunities in Wirral

Workforce skills match business needs

Growth Plan

Overview from Lead Cabinet Member

Delivery of the Growth Plan continues to progress well with pledge indicators and measures meeting and/or over achieving on year end targets.  Highlights for the quarter include a continued strong employment rate up 5.9 percentage points since the baseline position and narrowing the gap with the NW to 

just 0.4% points for the first time since September 2015.

Key activity highlights to date include:

EMPLOYMENT: We commissioned a £6.5m Ways to Work programme to support residents to access employment opportunities. The Wirral Ways to Work Programme has engaged almost 4,000 residents and supported almost 2,000 into employment or training since its start in April 2016.

WORKFORCE SKILLS: We have worked with City Region Partners to produce a City Region Skills Strategy and ensured our local businesses are supported to participate in the provision of workforce training, using our businesses networks to promote national and regional campaigns. This includes the City 

Region Skills for Growth Service which has registered 245 Wirral businesses, invested over £400k in workplace skills, and trained over 1,400 employees this year.

INVESTMENT: We worked with City Region partners to attract inward investment into Wirral by showcasing our key sectors and generating international leads. This includes the £1.2m Place Marketing for Investment Programme delivering sector focused investment literature, trade show participation, hosting 

local delegations, monitoring potential foreign direct investment pipeline and securing new investments.   

BUSINESS: We commissioned a newly designed Business Support Service to reduce costs, bring in commercial expertise and deliver our 2020 ambitions at pace. To date the service has registered over 600 businesses, provided over 250 with active support, and launched 6 new sector network forums in 

key growth sectors.

P
age 64



Wirral Plan Indicator Indicator 
Wirral Plan 

Start
Benchmark Data

Year End

2016-17

2017-18 

Q1

2017-18 

Q2

2017-18 

Q3

2017-18 

Q4

Year End

2017-18 

Trend

(See 

Key)

Comment

Total investment secured 

into Wirral developments

Annual

Higher is better

£38,044,660

(2014-15)

£107,536,957

(2016-17)

Green

Actual: 

£147,533,345

Target: 

£154,536,957

(2017-18)

Better 2020 target on track to achieve with key investment projects in the pipeline for 2018-20

Gross Value Added per 

head of population

Annual

Higher is better

£12,482

(Jan-Dec 2013)

England: £27,060 (Jan - 

Dec 2016)

North West: £22,899 

(Jan - Dec 2016)

£14,523

(Jan-Dec 

2015)

£15,051

(Jan-Dec 2016)
Better

This annual indicator was released 20.12.17 and reveals a 3.6% improvement on last years  

outturn figure as reported in 2016.

Wirral Plan Indicator Indicator 
Wirral Plan 

Start
Benchmark Data

Year End

2016-17

2017-18 

Q1

2017-18 

Q2

2017-18 

Q3

2017-18 

Q4

Year End

2017-18 

Trend

(See 

Key)

Comment

Deliver a net additional 250 

new businesses over the life 

of this Plan

Annual

Higher is better

7,400

(2014-15)

8,425

(2016-17)

8,705

(2017-18)
Better

Recent figures show that Wirral has increased its performance on last year by 420 

businesses, which is an increase of 4.9%, higher than the national average increase of 4.5%. 

Cumulatively, this represents a net additional 1,305 new businesses since the 2014-15 

baseline position.

Increase inward investment

Thriving small businesses

P
age 65



Wirral Plan Indicator Indicator 
Wirral Plan 

Start
Benchmark Data

Year End

2016-17

2017-18 

Q1

2017-18 

Q2

2017-18 

Q3

2017-18 

Q4

Year End

2017-18 

Trend

(See 

Key)

Comment

Increase visitor numbers 

each year based on the 

2014 baseline (m)

Annual

Higher is better

7.59

(Jan-Dec 2014)

8.20

(Jan-Dec 

2015)

8.50

(Jan-Dec 2016)
Better

Performance for 2016 was published during Quarter 1 2017-18: and has confirmed total visitor 

numbers have increased in Wirral by an average of 5.75% p.a. since 2014. This data comes 

from Global Tourism Solutions via the Local Enterprise Partnership.  It is based on the STEAM 

model which quantifies the local economic impact of tourism, from both staying and day 

visitors using a range of visitor economy measures.

Increase value of tourism 

economy by at least 5% 

each year (£m).

Annual

Higher is better

£355.00

(Jan-Dec 2014)

£385.80

(Jan-Dec 

2015)

Green

Actual: £402.40

Target: £391.90

(Jan-Dec 2016)

Better

Performance for 2016 was published during Quarter 1 2017-18: and has confirmed an 

average increase of 6.4% p.a. since 2014.  This data comes from Global Tourism Solutions via 

the Local Enterprise Partnership.  It is based on the STEAM model which quantifies the local 

economic impact of tourism, from both staying and day visitors using a range of visitor 

economy measures.

Supporting Measure Indicator 
Wirral Plan 

Start
Benchmark Data

Year End

2016-17

2017-18

Q1

2017-18 

Q2

2017-18 

Q3

2017-18 

Q4

Year End

2017-18
Trend Comment

Increase overnight stays & 

hotel occupancy by 5% by 

2020 based on the 2016 

baseline

Annual

Higher is better

77.75

(Jan-Dec 2016)

77.62

(2017)
n/a

Slight decrease on the 2016 baseline due to a lack of current market research and evaluation, 

which was commissioned in Dec 2017. The results of the study will be implemented from 

2018/19 as part of the Wirral Growth Plan for strategic development.

Increase the numbers of 

Wirral Visitor Economy 

Network members

Annual

Higher is better

85

(Jan-Dec 2016)

73

(2017)
n/a

The management of the Wirral Visitor Economy Network (WVEN) was contracted out to The 

Wirral Chamber in summer of 2017. There has been a transition period while the WVEN 

becomes part of the wider sector network offer within the Wirral Chamber.                                                                                        

Measures that have been put in place to increase the WVEN membership are: 

                                                                                                                  

Wirral Chamber have recruited a post for Head of Tourism, which will be in place with 

supporting staff during the next quarter. There will be a strong focus on increasing the 

membership through an improved model. A Business Development Manager will also be in 

post to review the current membership offer and to focus on driving up the membership 

numbers of the Network. This will be done through the implementation of a targeted strategic 

business development plan with measureable key performance indicators and revenues 

targets. 

Wirral Chamber has also recently commissioned the Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) to 

develop a marketing strategy and related implementation, which will support the WVEN.

Vibrant tourism economy

Overview from Lead Cabinet Member

Progress has been made in Q4 to achieve the Vibrant Tourism Economy pledge, as a key element of the Wirral Growth Plan, through the delivery with partners of the actions within the Wirral Visitor Economy Strategy. 

Key highlights this quarter include: 

* Wirral visitor data for 2017 has been submitted to Global Tourism Solutions to evaluate Wirral's visitor economy through the STEAM model.

* Hotel Solutions have made excellent progress on the Wirral hotel / accommodation research study, which will inform and accelerate future hotel investment & development.

* The creation of a joint event schedule with Culture Liverpool for 2018 and beyond based on the past performance and success (i.e. 94,000 new visitors to the Wirral elements of the Mersey River Festival & River of Light firework display, which collectively generated an economic impact of over £1.1million in 

2017). 

* Wirral's inclusion in the LEP SIF bid for business support funds to attract more conferences and business meetings to the borough.

* Success for 2 Wirral farm attractions securing rural tourism grants through the Mersey Rural Leader programme and creating 18 FTEs in Wirral. 

* The Tourism marketing plan has recently been commissioned, following the launch of the Wirral Visitor Economy Strategy in 2017, resulting in a later implementation than originally planned.

* Staff training has now taken place with Wirral Chamber of Commerce to support the maintenance of the tourism website and related social media

P
age 66



Wirral Plan Indicator Indicator 
Wirral Plan 

Start
Benchmark Data

Year End

2016-17

2017-18 

Q1

2017-18 

Q2

2017-18 

Q3

2017-18 

Q4

Year End

2017-18 

Trend

(See 

Key)

Comment

Increased the volume 

percentage of people cycling

Annual

Higher is better

0%

(index for 2013-

14)

19%

(2015-16)

11%

(2017-18)
Worse

This data is for 2016/17 and is indexed against the 2013/14 baseline. The data shows an 11% 

increase in the overall volume percentage of people cycling since the start of the plan.   

Although the data shows that there has been a decrease since 15/16 this is consistent with the 

overall Merseyside figures and it is generally acknowledged by partners that there will be year 

on year differences due to external factors such as weather, and therefore the longer term 

trend, since the start of the plan, is considered to be the most appropriate measure.

Reduce the number of 

people killed or seriously 

injured in road traffic 

accidents

Quarterly

Lower is better

140

(2014-15)

English Metropolitan 

Authorities: 107 (2013-

15)

North West: 90 (2013-

15)

122

(2016)

Green

Actual: 25

Target: 23

(Apr-Jun 2017)

Blue

Actual: 46

Target: 47

(Apr-Sep 2017)

Red

Actual: 92

Target: 70

(Apr-Dec 2017)

Red

Actual: 127

Target: 94

(Q4 17-18)

Red

Actual: 127

Target: 94

(YE 17-18)

Worse

Whilst there was an increase of 5 KSI casualties in 2017 compared to 2016 there has been an 

overall improvement compared to the number of KSI casualties since the start of this plan - 

127 this year against 140 at the start of the plan period. 

By comparison the total number of casualties (including those slight injuries) decreased from 

670 in 2016 to 618 in 2017. There were the fewest number of road collisions recorded by the 

police in 2017. In order to continue to reduce the number of KSI’s we have developed a draft 

Wirral Road Safety Plan to address the challenges and measures to ensure that the risk to all 

road users is reduced.  This plan will be presented to the Cabinet Member in May 2018.  We 

will continue to work through the Merseyside Road Safety Partnership to analyse data, 

produce targeting programmes and monitor the effectiveness of our engagement measures. 

The Plan recognises that road safety is a shared responsibility and we will continue to work 

with all users of the network to encourage them to consider their environment and adjust their 

personal behaviour.

Maintain the condition of 

Wirral’s strategic network – 

Principal Roads

Annual

Lower is better

1.40%

(2014-15)

English Metropolitan 

Authorities: 4.00% (2015-

16)

North West: 4.00% 

(2015-16)

1.40%

(2015-16)

1.30%

(2016-17)
Better

These progress updates reflect the results of the 2017 Wirral roads condition survey.  A slight 

improvement has been achieved on our 2016 survey of principal roads which has meant we 

have improved on our road conditions since the start of the Wirral Plan.  With regard to non-

principal roads, the results of the latest condition survey showed we have maintained the 

standard of our 'B' and 'C' roads since last year and have retained the improvement made 

since the start of the Wirral Plan.  As a result our road users continue to experience efficient 

and safer journeys on our network.

Maintain the condition of 

Wirral’s strategic network – 

Non-principal Roads

Annual

Lower is better

2.20%

(2014-15)

English Metropolitan 

Authorities: 5.00% (2015-

16)

North West: 6.00% 

(2015-16)

1.30%

(2015-16)

1.30%

(2016-17)
Same

These progress updates reflect the results of the 2017 Wirral roads condition survey.  A slight 

improvement has been achieved on our 2016 survey of principal roads which has meant we 

have improved on our road conditions since the start of the Wirral Plan.  With regard to non-

principal roads, the results of the latest condition survey showed we have maintained the 

standard of our 'B' and 'C' roads since last year and have retained the improvement made 

since the start of the Wirral Plan.  As a result our road users continue to experience efficient 

and safer journeys on our network.

The quality of roads and footways is a big priority for our residents, and therefore I am delighted to report that this quarter we have been awarded over £6 million from the Combined Authority to support the delivery of the transport pledge and ensure that our infrastructure is fit for the future.  This funding will 

enable us to improve the condition of our roads and enable us to continue to improve the safety and efficiency of our network. 

Other highlights include: - 

Whilst reflecting on progress to deliver this pledge over the past year I would like to acknowledge the benefits that are being realised by working in partnership. We are making real progress and this is being made possible by working in partnership and I would like to thank the steering group members and 

partners for their commitment and enthusiasm in the delivery of this pledge

Transport and technology infrastructure fit for the future

Overview from Lead Cabinet Member

P
age 67



Supporting Measure Indicator 
Wirral Plan 

Start
Benchmark Data

Year End

2016-17

2017-18

Q1

2017-18 

Q2

2017-18 

Q3

2017-18 

Q4

Year End

2017-18
Trend Comment

% levels of satisfaction 

overall with transport and 

highway services.

Annual

Higher is better

56.7%

(2015)

National Highways and 

Transport Survey: 54.0% 

(2017)

57.0%

(2016)

56.0%

(2017)
Worse

The result of the National Highways and Transport Network (NHT) Public Satisfaction Survey 

(PSS) indicated that Wirral has slightly reduced our residents overall satisfaction with transport 

and highway services, however our performance is better than the national average of 54%.

Increase levels of public 

satisfaction with public 

transport

Annual

Higher is better

64%

(2015)

National Highways and 

Transport Survey: 61% 

(2017)

65%

(2016)

63%

(2017)
Worse

The result of the National Highways and Transport Network (NHT) Public Satisfaction Survey 

(PSS) indicated that Wirral have slightly reduced our residents overall satisfaction with public 

transport. The score is better than the national average of 61%.

Increase levels of public 

satisfaction with 

walking/cycling facilities

Annual

Higher is better

56%

(2015)

National Highways and 

Transport Survey: 55% 

(2017)

56%

(2016)

55%

(2017)
Worse

The result of the 2017 National Highways and Transport Network (NHT) Public Satisfaction 

Survey (PSS) indicate that Wirral has experienced a slight reduction on our residents overall 

satisfaction with walking/cycling facilities, however our performance has matched the national 

average.

Travel Training – Number of  

successfully travel trained 

young people (Integrated 

Transport)

Annual

Higher is better

26

(2014-15 Acad 

Year)

15

(2016-17 Acad 

Year)

23

(2017-18 Acad 

Year)

Better

Looking forward we are going into this year with healthy interest in the service with 15 pupils in 

training and 13 on the waiting list. The Travel Trainers also have 1 pupil in an electric 

wheelchair and enquiries from more complex learners such as those pupils who attend  

Meadowside School as well as several pupils/parent  enquiring who travel out of Borough.

We will work to develop an all age travel training service and more people will be supported to 

travel independently to school, college, work or to their chosen activities

P
age 68



Wirral Plan Indicator Indicator 
Wirral Plan 

Start
Benchmark Data

Year End

2016-17

2017-18 

Q1

2017-18 

Q2

2017-18 

Q3

2017-18 

Q4

Year End

2017-18 

Trend

(See 

Key)

Comment

£m Income generation from 

investment properties and 

underperforming space

Annual

Higher is better

£1.6

(2015-16)

£1.6

(2016-17)

Red

Actual: £1.6

Target: £1.8

(2017-18)

Same

Performance has been impacted by the sale of a number of income generating assets using 

an opportunity given by central government to utilise capital receipts to fund vital 

transformation projects. This is considered a corporate priority. The future direction of the 

investment portfolio will be driven in part by the activities of the Growth Company and more 

general strategic asset requirements including One Public Estate in respect of regeneration 

and commercial growth. Investment in strategic acquisitions will also enable the Authority to 

increase revenue whilst supporting broader socio-economic ambitions.

£m Capital Receipts 

generated by the disposal of 

Wirral Council's surplus 

assets

Annual

Higher is better

£1.28

(2015-16)

£2.87

(2016-17)

Red

Actual: £2.82

Target: £15.00

(2017-18)

Worse

The last year has seen a major step forward in the consideration of alternative delivery 

models, culminating in the formation of the Wirral Growth Company. While capital receipts 

have been considered a priority for financial stability some key disposal sites have been 

delayed by a range of external factors. However, these sites remain on target to provide 

capital receipts within the time period for the flexible use of capital receipts for Transformation 

projects.  Underperforming assets will continue to be disposed in a consistent manner, 

ensuring a pipeline of assets for disposal. This will form the basis of strategic regeneration 

across the Wirral and the One Public Estate, driven by the Growth Company joint venture. 

This longer term ambition for Council assets will result in a more sustainable source of 

revenue and capital receipts into the future.

Commercial asset space 

available for release (m2)

Annual

Higher is better

5,711

(2015-16)

78,483

(2016-17)

Red

Actual: 31,203

Target: 140,000

(2017-18)

Worse

The target of 140,000 has been impacted by the delayed completion of Acre Lane 

(85,000m2), however, this year’s performance will make a major contribution to the 

commercial climate, facilitating the building of new homes including “extra care” and 

generating additional income across the borough. Projects in train will ensure the delivery of 

the required increase in commercial asset space during the lifetime of the 2020 pledges.

Supporting Measure Indicator 
Wirral Plan 

Start
Benchmark Data

Year End

2016-17

2017-18

Q1

2017-18 

Q2

2017-18 

Q3

2017-18 

Q4

Year End

2017-18
Trend Comment

Reduction in Wirral 

Council's corporate 

emissions of carbon dioxide 

(CO2) due to energy use 

(tonnes)

Annual

Lower is better

31,999

(2013-14)

30,446

(2015-16)

Blue

Actual: 28,106

Target: 31,761

(2016-17)

Better

Corporate performance over the 2016-17 financial year has exceeded the 2016-17 emissions 

target by 11.51%.

To date, we have reduced emissions of CO2 by 17,375 tonnes from a 2008/09 baseline of 

45,481 tonnes, a reduction of 38.2% over 7 operational years. The year-on-year reduction is 

7.69%.

Annual  Update due September 2018.

Number of multi-use of 

assets through shared / 

alternative use

Annual

Higher is better

4

(as at April 

2016)

6

(as at March 

2017)

12

(as at March 

2018)

Better

Provision has been made for multi-occupational use with One Public Estate partners the 

Police & Crime Authority, Department of Work and Pensions and Cheshire and Wirral 

Partnership NHS Foundation Trust in four previously under- utilised Council Buildings. This 

has increased income generation and benefited the wider public service agenda.

Assets and buildings are fit for purpose for Wirral’s  businesses

Overview from Lead Cabinet Member

The activity in this area of the Wirral Plan continues to be of significant importance to the economic stability of the Council and the wider Wirral area. The range of activities affects most of the 2020 pledges.

Transformation projects are increasingly relying upon asset management knowledge and expertise to inform changes in service delivery; this is being undertaken for Council services as well as in collaboration with partner organisations.  Whilst the ultimate aim is to locate all services in one or more town 

centre offices within the Birkenhead Commercial District the asset strategy has had to flex to address immediate service needs of a number of Council’s services i.e. Children’s Services. This in turn has had a knock-on effect to other accommodation plans. Quarter 4 has tested the robustness of the Asset 

Strategy.

Capital receipts have been generated in the region of £2.8m in 2017/18 whilst this figure is well below the expected target of £15m for 2017/18 there were a number of delays in actual receipts which will now be realised in the next 2 financial years, but still falling within the time period for the flexible use of 

Capital Receipts allowed by Government for the funding of transformation (revenue) projects.

Key challenges:

- Generating Capital receipts

- Working with private sector partnerships (Wirral Growth Company)

- Mapping of future service needs of the Wirral Partnership

- Asset rationalisation and disposal 

- Acquisition of key assets in areas for regeneration

- Reduction of revenue expenditure in operational assets

- Land assembly to enable wider development projects

- Office Accommodation to meet immediate demands of Services

P
age 69



Report Key

Trend - Performance is shown as Better, Same or Worse compared with the last reporting period except for: Increase the number of jobs created and safeguarded (via Wirral Chamber data reporting), Reduce the number of People Killed or Seriously Injured in road traffic accidents which are compared with same period the previous year.

Target - Where targets apply, these are shown as either Blue, Green, Amber, Red based on the agreed tolerance range for individual measures.

P
age 70



             

 

  

 
 

 

Wirral Plan - Business 

2017-18 Year End Report 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Wirral Plan 2020 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 71



             

 

 

  

Business Summary 
Key Achievements:  

Growth 

 3,122 Jobs have been created since the start of the Wirral Plan against the 2020 target of 3,054; 62% of has been achieved  

 Employment rate on Wirral is 72.6% the highest recorded figure since reporting started in 2014 and 1,305 new businesses have been created since the start of the Wirral Plan  

 A £3.5m Grant was secured from Government to deliver the ‘Households into Work Programme’ 

 £6.5m Ways to Work programme - 3,935 participants engaged since April 2016 supporting 1,959 people back into work or training; a 4.9% positive outcome rate.  

 Health Related Worklessness Programme – 1,323 people have been engaged, with provider SPIDER registered 104 people, overachieving on its target of 93 

 City Region Skills for Growth Project – 1,415 employees are participating in skills training 

Tourism 

 There has been a 6.4%  average annual increase in the value of tourism and a 5.8% average annual increase in visitor numbers since the start of Wirral Plan 

 Visit Wirral now has 12,537 Twitter followers a 10% increase on the previous year and 903 Facebook likes a 42% increase on the previous year  

 Public information about conservation areas and heritage assets as been improved with an online map and guide 

Assets 

 Provision has been made for joint occupation of Public Sector partners in four previously under- utilised Council Buildings, increasing income generation and benefiting the 

wider public service agenda 

Transport and Technology 

 £6 million from the Combined Authority to support the delivery of the transport pledge and ensure that our infrastructure is fit for the future 

Areas for Improvement: 

Growth 

 Although over £147m of inward investment has been achieved since the start of the Plan, this is still slightly below (4.7%) the target of £154m for 2017/18 year end 

Tourism 

 Overnight stays and hotel occupancy levels in Wirral have seen 0.2% decrease on 2016 baseline. The results of a 2017 research study will be implemented from 2018/19 as 

part of the Wirral Growth Plan 

 Wirral Visitor Economy Network (WVEN) members decreased 14% on the 2016 baseline; management is now contracted to The Wirral Chamber 

Assets 

 116,203 m
2
 Asset Space was released for disposal or other uses against the target of 140,000, of which 31,203 m

2
 was disposed of. Performance in 2018/19 is expected to 

further improve and facilitate the building of new homes including “extra care” and generate additional income 

 Capital receipts of £2.82m have been achieved against a target of £15m to date. Key disposals have been delayed but remain on target to provide capital receipts within 

targets and deadlines and future work will be driven by the Growth Company Joint venture 

Transport and Technology 

 Although the target was achieved to deliver high speed broadband to 98% of Wirral further development work is required in delivering a digital approach 

 

P
age 72



             

Better 
45.8% 

Same 
8.3% 

Worse 
29.2% 

Trend not 
available 

16.7% 

BUSINESS Trend 
- compared to previous Year  

Better

Same

Worse

Trend not
available

Better 
62.5% 

Same 
4.2% 

Worse 
25.0% 

Trend not 
available 

8.3% 

BUSINESS Trend 
- compared to Wirral Plan Start  

Better

Same

Worse

Trend not
available

 

  
Outcomes for Residents- Compared to the Previous Year 

Growth:  

 5 measures performing better: 1,041 jobs created/safeguarded in year, a  4.4% increase on the previous year; the rate of 

employment up by 2.9%; £40m investment secured in year; Gross Value Added per head population up by 2.6%; number of new 

businesses stands at 8,705, an increase of 3.3% 

 1 measure withdrawn: % of Working age people claiming out of work benefit withdrawn by the DWP 

Tourism:  

 2 measures performing better: visitor numbers increased by 3.6% and value of tourism increased by 4.3%. 

Assets:  

 2 measures performing better: doubled the number of multi-use of assets through shared / alternative from 6 to 12 and reduced 

Council corporate emissions by 7.69% in year 

 1 performing same: income generation achieved £1.6m against a target of £1.8m 

 2 performing worse: commercial asset space available for release was 31,203(m
2
) vs 78,483(m

2
) last year; disposal of Capital 

Receipts £2.82m achieved vs £2.87 Last year 

Transport and Technology:  

 2 measures performing better: Principal roads where maintenance should be considered reduced from 1.4% to 1.3%. The 

number of successfully Integrated transport trained young people increased by 53% from 15 to 23  

 1 measure performing the same: Non principle roads where maintenance should be considered remains at 1.3% 

 5 measures performing worse: cycling fell from 19% to 11%, KSIs increased by 4% from 122 to 127. Satisfaction levels with 

transport  & highway services reduced from 57% to 56%; public transport fell from 65% to 63%; walking/cycling facilities fell 

from 56% to 55% 

 

Outcomes for Residents – Since the Start of the Wirral Plan 

Growth: 

 5 measures performing better: 3,122 created/safeguarded; rate of employment up by 8.8%; total investment secured increased 

to £147m; Gross Value Added per head population up by over 20%; 1,305 new businesses created, increase of 17.6% 

Tourism:  

 2 measures performing better: visitor numbers increased by 12% and value of tourism increased by 13.35% 

 2 measures worse: Overnight hotel stays fell 0.2%; Wirral Visitor Economy Network members have fallen by 14% to 75 members.  

Assets:  

 4 measures performing better: Capital receipts have increased by £1.54m; increased the number of multi-use of assets through 

shared / alternative use from 4 to 12; Commercial Asset Space available for release increased from 5,711 m2 at start of plan to 

78,483; reduced Council corporate emissions by  12% start of plan 

 1 performing same: Income generation achieved £1.6m  

Transport and Technology:  

 3 measures performing better: KSIs decreased by 9% from 140 to 127. Principle roads where maintenance should be considered 

improved from 1.4% to 1.3%. Non principal roads where maintenance should be considered improved from 2.2% to 1.3% 

 4 measures performing worse: Satisfaction levels with transport and highway services fell by 0.7%; public transport fell by 1%; 

walking/cycling facilities fell by 1%. The number of successfully Integrated Transport trained young people decreased 11.5% 

P
age 73



             

 

  

In 
progress 

14.5% 

Completed 
34.5% 

Withdrawn 
1.8% 

Redefined 
49.1% 

Business - Year End Action Status 

In progress

Completed

Withdrawn

Redefined

Delivery – Doing What We Said We Would 
Growth:  

 The Wirral Growth Company was established with Joint Venture Partner MUSE to further progress the Strategic Growth Plan 

 The Growth Hub engaged with 868 businesses against a target of 504 in the year 

 The Wirral Apprentice Programme saw 49 apprenticeship opportunities created and 39 employers engaged in 2017/18 

 Delivering the Place Marketing and the Touchdown Wirral service project in partnership with Liverpool City Region 

Tourism:  

 Imagine Wirral and Culture Liverpool have established a joint event schedule to deliver major events including the 3 Festivals 

Tall Ships Regatta and River of Light 

 Port Sunlight, Birkenhead Park and coastal resorts are key priorities for development in the LCR's new Visitor Investment Plan 

Assets:  

 Success of the One Public Estate bid has been confirmed to further drive the area asset Review programme 

 Strategic Accommodation changes are being delivered to support improved working and efficiencies 

Transport and Technology:  

 Success of the business case for £25m of investment in key route network resulted in £2.5m funding to upgrade infrastructure 

on the A41 corridor and the Dock Link Road 

 Success of the Rights Of Way improvement Plan enabled funding to the network though the Integrated Block Programme 

 

Next Steps 
Growth 

 Work with the Growth Company and  other partners  to further develop regeneration in priority areas 

 Commission a ‘Major Projects’ Programme to develop capacity and produce an Investment Pipeline 

 Continue to deliver the ‘Ways to Work’ Programme 

Tourism 

 Deliver the final part of the Giants story in October 2018, expected to attract up to 1 million visitors to the region 

 Develop 3 year plans for future hotel/accommodation investment and to attract more conferences/exhibitions 

 Support the Eureka! Mersey development as a premier north of England visitor attraction 

Assets 

 Strategic regeneration driven by the Growth Company Joint Venture will lead to asset disposal, sustainable revenue and capital receipts, commercial growth and strategic acquisitions 

 Develop a partnership approach to collectively identify current and future asset needs to enable effective service delivery 

Transport and Technology 

 New work will commence in 2018 to continue to create a connected digital Wirral 

 Undertake a review of transport policies to develop an all age travel policy to support our residents’ needs 

 Work to develop an all age travel training service, supporting more people to travel independently  

P
age 74



             

Business 
        

Pledge : Greater job opportunities in Wirral 

Priority 01: INCREASING EMPLOYMENT – GREATER JOB OPPORTUNITIES 

 Action Timescale  Status Rationale 

Deliver the Health Related Worklessness Programme to 
support residents furthest from the labour market 

Feb 2017 -  
Jan 2019 

In Progress   

Deliver the Ways to Work programme to support residents 
to access employment opportunities 

Jul 2016 -  
Dec 2018 

In Progress   

Maximise devolution/regional/ national funding opportunities 
to bring forward employment programmes which support 
pledge outcomes 

Apr 2016 -  
Mar 2020 

In Progress   

        

Pledge : Workforce skills match business needs 

Priority 01: WORKFORCE SKILLS MATCH BUSINESS NEEDS 

 Action Timescale  Status Rationale 

Optimise apprenticeship opportunities with all key partners 
Apr 2017 -  
Mar 2018 

Completed   

Progress skills delivery and infrastructure projects by 
capitalising on devolution/ regional/ national funding 
opportunities 

Apr 2016 -  
Mar 2020 

Redefined 
Split out into two separate actions  for Delivery and 
infrastructure 

Raise Awareness of the Science, Technology, Engineering 
& Maths (STEM) Centre to increase STEM skills across the 
LCR linking them to businesses and industry 

Apr 2017 -  
Mar 2018 

Completed   

        

Pledge : Increase inward investment 

Priority 01: LOCAL PHYSICAL INFRASTRUCTURE 

 Action Timescale  Status Rationale 

Deliver the Wirral Waters Investment Fund 
Jun 2017 -  
Mar 2020 

Redefined 
The wording of this action has been made more specific to 
ensure clarity of delivery 

Implement the Wirral Strategic Regeneration Framework 
including a focus on growth plan spatial priority regeneration 
areas 

Apr 2017 -  
Mar 2020 

In Progress   

        

  

P
age 75



             

Priority 02: LOCAL INWARD INVESTMENT 

 Action Timescale  Status Rationale 

Develop appropriate local infrastructure to facilitate/ deliver 
inward investment 

Apr 2017 -  
Dec 2017 

Completed   

        

Priority 03: NATIONAL/INTERNATIONAL INWARD INVESTMENT 

 Action Timescale  Status Rationale 

Ensure our strategic areas and sectors are promoted and 
investment opportunities maximised 

Apr 2017 -  
Mar 2020 

In Progress   

        

Pledge : Thriving small businesses 

Priority 01: GROWING COMPETITIVE BUSINESSES 

 Action Timescale  Status Rationale 

Deliver the Liverpool City Region Growth Hub in Wirral to 
drive business growth in key sectors and encourage greater 
use of commercial support 

Apr 2017 -  
Mar 2018 

Completed   

Deliver the Wirral Business Support Service to support 
thriving small business growth including sector networking, 
start-up and growth support, and workforce development 

Jun 2017 -  
May 2020 

In Progress   

Provide a rolling programme of business-led pilot projects in 
town centres in support of the ‘Prosperous High Street’ 
Pledge 

Jun 2017 -  
May 2020 

In Progress   

        

Pledge : Vibrant tourism economy 

Priority 01: Developing Wirral’s tourism marketing strategy and positioning the peninsula as an outstanding destination 

 Action Timescale  Status Rationale 

Deliver joint event schedule with Culture Liverpool to 
maximise opportunities to promote Wirral 

Jun 2017 - Mar 
2018 

Completed   

Develop a 3 year marketing strategy targeting leisure and 
business visitors 

Jul 2017 -  
Mar 2018 

Redefined 
The timescales have been refreshed in line with business 
priorities and action progress during 2018-19 

Develop partnerships to support product packaging and 
development of themed itineraries for the travel trade 

Jun 2017 -  
Mar 2018 

Completed   

Maximise the use of VisitWirral,digital and social media 
channels 

Jun 2017 -  
Mar 2018 

Completed   

        

P
age 76



             

Priority 02: Generating greater benefit from conferences, business meetings and events 

 Action Timescale  Status Rationale 

Develop a 3 year business plan to attract more conferences, 
exhibitions and events 

Jun 2017 -  
Mar 2018 

Redefined 
The timescales have been refreshed in line with business 
priorities and action progress during 2018-19 

Develop a digital destination venue directory hosted on Visit 
Wirral 

Jun 2017 -  
Mar 2018 

Redefined 
The timescales have been refreshed in line with business 
priorities and action progress during 2018-19 

Develop a new model through the Single Investment Fund 
(SIF) business tourism bid to attract conference organisers 
to Wirral 

Jun 2017 -  
Oct 2017 

Completed   

Establish destination lead for conference & corporate events 
and develop marketing, research and bidding opportunities 

Jun 2017 -  
Mar 2018 

Completed   

        

Priority 03: Develop Wirral’s tourism assets and experiences to increase competitiveness 

 Action Timescale  Status Rationale 

Develop a commercially led events model to focus on key 
events space in Wirral 

Jun 2017 -  
Mar 2018 

Redefined 
The timescales have been refreshed in line with business 
priorities and action progress during 2018-19 

Develop a hotel development strategy to attract multi-day 
conferences and develop key leisure markets 

Jun 2017 -  
Mar 2018 

Redefined 
The timescales have been refreshed in line with business 
priorities and action progress during 2018-19 

Develop initiatives with Port Sunlight, Birkenhead Park and 
coastal resorts to strengthen Wirral’s Tourism Offer and 
attract external funding 

Jun 2017 -  
Mar 2018 

Completed   

Develop strategic partnerships with key stakeholders to 
invest in Wirral’s Tourism Offer 

Jun 2017 -  
Mar 2018 

Completed   

Establish destination partnerships with key sector 
stakeholders (hoteliers, restaurants and attractions) to 
develop themed itineraries and packages 

Jun 2017 -  
Mar 2018 

Completed   

        

  

P
age 77



             

Priority 04: Establishing a Sustainable and Accessible Visitor Economy 

 Action Timescale  Status Rationale 

Develop a Wirral wide volunteer programme to support the 
Visitor Economy 

Jun 2017 -  
Mar 2018 

Redefined 
The timescales have been refreshed in line with business 
priorities and action progress during 2018-19 

Engaging local heritage forums and partnerships to map 
heritage assets 

Jun 2017 -  
Mar 2018 

Completed   

Review conservation and heritage plans to ensure the 
appropriate measures are in place to support the visitor 
experience and safeguarding assets 

Jun 2017 -  
Mar 2018 

Redefined 
The timescales have been refreshed in line with business 
priorities and action progress during 2018-19 

Review local policy and planning frameworks to ensure they 
support ambitions for World Heritage status at Port Sunlight 
and Birkenhead Park 

Jun 2017 -  
Sep 2017 

Completed   

        

  P
age 78



             

Pledge : Transport and technology infrastructure fit for the future 

Priority 01: Keep traffic moving safely and efficiently 

 Action Timescale  Status Rationale 

Deliver Highways Asset Management Policy Level 2 and 
work towards achieving Level 3 

Apr 2017 - Mar 
2018 

Redefined 

The timescales have been refreshed in line with business 
priorities and action progress during 2018-19The wording of 
this action has been made more specific to ensure clarity of 
delivery 

Delivery of the Docks Bridges Replacement Programme 
(new ‘A’ and ‘C’ bridges) to provide a new fit for purpose 
structure and minimise the potential of future closures due to 
maintenance issues. 

Jun 2016 -  
Dec 2017 

Redefined 
The timescales have been refreshed in line with business 
priorities and action progress during 2018-19 

Develop a Wirral Road Safety (WRS) strategy to support the 
delivery of the Liverpool City Region (LCR) Road Safety 
Strategy 

Apr 2017 -  
Mar 2018 

Redefined 
The timescales have been refreshed in line with business 
priorities and action progress during 2018-19 

Development of a major scheme business case (MSBC) to 
support funding applications for the transport infrastructure 
that is required to support the delivery of the Hoylake Golf 
Resort 

Apr 2017 -  
Sep 2018 

Redefined 

The timescales have been refreshed in line with business 
priorities and action progress during 2018-19 
The wording of this action has been made more specific to 
ensure clarity of delivery 

Development of an integrated transport infrastructure plan 
for East Wirral to ensure transport supports regeneration 
and growth proposals and opportunities in Wirral 

Apr 2017 -  
Mar 2018 

Redefined 

The timescales have been refreshed in line with business 
priorities and action progress during 2018-19 
The wording of this action has been made more specific to 
ensure clarity of delivery 

Implementation of a Key Route Network (KRN) to deliver a 
consistent approach to highway delivery, maintenance and 
standards across the City Region. 

Jun 2016 -  
Mar 2018 

Completed   

Implementation of a marketing and communication 
programme to improve the perception of the condition of the 
transport infrastructure 

Apr 2017 -  
Mar 2018 

Redefined 

The timescales have been refreshed in line with business 
priorities and action progress during 2018-19 
The wording of this action has been made more specific to 
ensure clarity of delivery 

Roll out system to support remote payment for car parking 
via mobile phones to make it easier and more convenient for 
people to park 

Nov 2016 –  
Mar 2018 

Withdrawn Included within new contractor arrangements 

        

  

P
age 79



             

Priority 02: Reliable and Affordable Public Transport 

 Action Timescale  Status Rationale 

Continue delivery of the Long Term Rail Strategy to improve 
accessibility and ensure that rail supports economic growth. 

Jun 2016 -  
Mar 2020 

In Progress   

Deliver a simpler and easier to understand smart ticketing 
package to ensure value for money 

Oct 2016 -  
Mar 2018 

Redefined 
The timescales have been refreshed in line with business 
priorities and action progress during 2018-19 

Deliver marketing and communications programmes to 
encourage new and existing users and change the 
perception of bus travel, including the development of a 
dedicated point of contact. 

Oct 2016 -  
Mar 2018 

Redefined 
The timescales have been refreshed in line with business 
priorities and action progress during 2018-19 

Undertake a full review of the Wirral Bus Network to ensure 
it serves the right locations and is fully integrated with rail 
services. 

Jan 2017 -  
Sep 2017 

Completed   

        

Priority 03: Encourage Healthy Active Travel 

 Action Timescale  Status Rationale 

Develop a Local Journeys Strategy and action plan to 
support access to key destinations within the Liverpool City 
Region (LCR) 

Jan 2017 -  
Mar 2018 

Completed   

Develop a prioritised programme for cycle parking to support 
access to town centres and key destinations 

Apr 2017 -  
Mar 2018 

Redefined 
The timescales have been refreshed in line with business 
priorities and action progress during 2018-19 

Develop a second Rights of Way Strategy to support the use 
of the public rights of way network across the Liverpool City 
Region 

Jul 2016 -  
Jan 2018 

Completed   

Review internal funding for transport schemes to ensure we 
maximise outcomes with our resources. 

Apr 2017 -  
Mar 2018 

Completed   

        

Priority 04: Inclusive integrated transport that supports our residents needs 

 Action Timescale  Status Rationale 

Undertake a comprehensive strategic review of the current 
arrangements for specialist transport provision to support 
independence and ensure we are operating efficiently and 
making the best use of our resources 

Jan 2017 -  
Mar 2018 

Completed   

        

  

P
age 80



             

Pledge : Assets and buildings are fit for purpose for Wirral’s  businesses 

Priority 01:  Place Shaping 

 Action Timescale  Status Rationale 

Area Asset Review Programme: Focus on 6 key 
geographical areas to develop opportunities for socio-
economic growth and asset rationalisation across the One 
Public Estate 

Feb 2017 -  
Dec 2018 

Redefined 

The timescales have been refreshed in line with business 
priorities and action progress during 2018-19.  The wording 
of this action has been made more specific to ensure clarity 
of delivery and to include the Wirral Growth Company. 

Produce strategic outline business cases for major 
transformation projects requiring asset changes 

May 2017 -  
Jan 2019 

Redefined 

The action will be monitored in 2018-19 as part of the 
delivery plan to "Develop plans for 6 key geographical areas 
to enable opportunities for socio-economic growth and 
asset rationalisation considering the LCR One Public Estate 
and the Wirral Growth Company delivery programme". 

        

Priority 02: Asset Policy and Strategy 

 Action Timescale  Status Rationale 

Asset Management System: Develop a strategic model to 
enable decision makers to deploy asset decision 
responsibilities effectively 

Apr 2017 -  
Mar 2020 

Redefined 
The wording of this action has been made more specific to 
ensure clarity of delivery and aligned with major 
transformation projects 

Develop the Asset Accommodation Strategy 
Apr 2017 -  
Dec 2017 

Redefined 

The wording of this action has been made more specific to 
ensure clarity of delivery and aligned with alternative service 
delivery and major transformation projects.  The timescales 
have been refreshed in line with business priorities and 
action progress during 2018-19. 

        

Priority 03: One Wirral Public Estate 

 Action Timescale  Status Rationale 

Conduct mapping exercises with partners to identify service 
provision priorities 

Apr 2017 -  
Sep 2017 

Redefined 

This action will be monitored in 2018-19 as part of the 
delivery plan for 'Initiate and develop a programme to 
identify asset requirements of the Wirral Property Board 
within the new Birkenhead Commercial District (including 
Civic Offices). 

Develop the new Wirral Civic Hub 
Apr 2017 -  
Mar 2020 

Redefined 

The wording of this action has been made more specific to 
ensure clarity of delivery.   The timescales have been 
refreshed in line with business priorities and action progress 
during 2018-19. 

        

P
age 81



             

Priority 04: Financial Efficiency 

 Action Timescale  Status Rationale 

Produce Development Briefs as part of the Commercial 
Assets Optimisation Review Programme 

May 2017 -  
Mar 2020 

Redefined 
The wording of this action has been made more specific to 
ensure clarity of delivery 

Report on and implement asset path proposals as part of 
the Commercial Assets Optimisation Review Programme 

May 2017 -  
Mar 2020 

Redefined 
The wording of this action has been made more specific to 
ensure clarity of delivery 

        

Priority 05: Maintaining the Corporate Estate 

 Action Timescale  Status Rationale 

Implement programme of capital works directed by the 
Asset & Capital Group, to meet the strategic objectives of 
the Growth & Property Board and Wirral’s Property Board 

Apr 2017 -  
Mar 2020 

Redefined 
The wording of this action has been made more specific to 
ensure clarity of delivery 

        

    

 

P
age 82



Business Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Wednesday, 4 July 2018

REPORT TITLE: Business Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
- Work Programme Report

REPORT OF: The Chair of the Committee – 
Councillor Mike Sullivan

REPORT SUMMARY
This report explains the process of developing and managing the scrutiny work 
programme for the municipal year. The Business Overview & Scrutiny Committee, in 
cooperation with the other three Overview & Scrutiny Committees, is responsible for 
proposing and delivering an annual scrutiny work programme. This work programme 
should align with the corporate priorities of the Council, in particular the delivery of 
the Wirral Plan pledges which are within the remit of the Committee. 
   
It is envisaged that the work programme will be formed from a combination of 
scrutiny reviews, standing items and requested officer reports. This report provides 
the committee with an opportunity to plan and regularly review its work across the 
municipal year.

RECOMMENDATION/S
Members are requested to:

Approve the proposed Business Overview & Scrutiny Committee work 
programme for 2018/19, making any required amendments. 

   

Page 83

Agenda Item 11



SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

To ensure members of the Environment Overview & Scrutiny Committee have 
the opportunity to contribute to the delivery of the annual work programme.

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED
Not Applicable

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 THE SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME AND THE WIRRAL PLAN  
The work programme should align with the priorities of the Council and its 
partners. The programme will be informed by:

 The Wirral Plan pledges
 The Council’s transformation programme
 The Council’s Forward Plan
 Service performance information
 Risk management information
 Public or service user feedback
 Referrals from Cabinet / Council

The specific Wirral Plan pledges and associated strategies of particular 
relevance to the Environment Overview & Scrutiny Committee are:

Pledge Plans & Strategies
Greater job opportunities in 
Wirral

Wirral Growth Plan

Workforce skills match 
business need

Wirral Growth Plan
Skills Strategy (In development)

Increase inward investment Wirral Growth Plan

Thriving small
Businesses

Wirral Growth Plan

Vibrant tourism economy Growth Plan
Wirral Visitor Economy Strategy

Transport & technology
infrastructure fit for the future

Transport Strategy
Digital Strategy 

Assets and buildings are fit 
for purpose

Asset Strategy

Page 84



 3.2 PRINCIPLES FOR PRIORITISATION
Good practice suggests that, in order to maximise the impact of scrutiny, it is 
necessary to prioritise proposed topics within the work programme. Members 
may find the following criteria helpful in providing a guideline towards ensuring 
that the most significant topics are prioritised:

Principles for Prioritisation
Does the topic have a direct link with one of the 
2020 pledges?Wirral Plan Will the review lead to improved outcomes for 
Wirral residents?

Public Interest Does the topic have particular importance for Wirral 
Residents?

Transformation Will the review support the transformation of the 
Council?
Is the subject matter an area of significant spend or 
potential saving?Financial 

Significance Will the review support the Council in achieving its 
savings targets?
Is this the most appropriate time for this topic to be 
scrutinised?Timeliness / 

Effectiveness Will the review be a good use of Council 
resources?

By assessing prospective topics using these criteria, the Committee can 
prioritise an effective work programme that ensures relevance and the highest 
potential to enhance outcomes for residents.

3.3 DELIVERING THE WORK PROGRAMME 
It is anticipated that the work programme will be delivered through a 
combination of:

 Scrutiny reviews undertaken by task & finish groups
 Evidence days and workshops
 Committee reports provided by officers
 Standing committee agenda items, for example, performance 

monitoring and financial monitoring
 Spotlight sessions  
 Standing panels (where deemed necessary)  

As some of the selected topics may well cut across the Wirral Plan themes, it 
is anticipated that some of the scrutiny topics may be of interest to members 
of more than one committee. In these circumstances, opportunities for 
members of more than one committee to work jointly on an item of scrutiny 
work will be explored.  

Regular work programme update reports will provide the committee with an 
opportunity to plan and regularly review its work across the municipal year. 

Page 85



3.4 SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME ITEMS

Commercial Strategy 

In the 2017/18 municipal year, the Business Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
agreed to undertake pre-decision scrutiny of the Council’s developing 
Commercial Strategy as part of the agreed work programme.  As the strategy 
was still in early development, no scrutiny was undertaken.  This item has 
now been transferred into the work programme for the 2018/19 municipal 
year.   A single workshop to undertake pre-decision scrutiny will be convened 
and all Overview & Scrutiny Committee Members will be invited to attend.  
Upon a date being agreed for the workshop, Members will be notified of the 
arrangements.

Universal Credit 

A scrutiny report of the emerging impact of Universal Credit is included 
elsewhere on this agenda.  Subject to agreement by Committee, it is 
proposed that further workshops are held later in the municipal year.  As with 
the previous workshops, all Overview & Scrutiny Members will be invited.  

Further Development of the Scrutiny Work Programme 

At the agenda setting meeting of the Chair and Party Spokespersons, a 
number of items were considered for inclusion as part of the Committee’s 
work programme for the 2018/19 municipal year.  These are detailed below:

 Impact of Universal Credit – Further Scrutiny workshops (See above)
 Council’s use of consultants and interim staff - Report 
 Wirral Growth Company – Report outlining progress and achievements  
 Wirral Waters – Workshop covering latest developments
 Impact of Car Parking Charges (Country Parks)
 Resident Car Parking – Follow up and impact report
 Hoylake Golf Resort – Progress updates as required
 Wirral Plan Strategies – Action Plan Updates 

Committee Members are invited to suggest other possible topics for inclusion 
in the work programme through the Chair or relevant Party Spokesperson.

Risk

In the previous municipal year, a number of Members highlighted the need for 
scrutiny to consider risk as part of the scrutiny work programme.  To develop 
Members’ understanding of risk and risk management, a number of ‘risk 
awareness sessions’ will be delivered early in the municipal year.  Proposals 
for how scrutiny considers risk as part of the scrutiny work programme can 
then be developed through Member feedback.  

Page 86



4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
Not Applicable

5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
Not Applicable

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: ICT, STAFFING AND ASSETS
The delivery of the scrutiny work programme will be met from within existing 
resources. 

7.0 RELEVANT RISKS 
Not Applicable

8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 
Not Applicable

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS
This report is for information to Members and there are no direct equality 
implications. 

REPORT AUTHOR: Michael Lester
Scrutiny Officer
0151 691 8628
email:  michaellester@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES
Appendix 1: Business Overview & Scrutiny Committee – Work programme 

REFERENCE MATERIAL

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date

Page 87

mailto:michaellester@wirral.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 3

BUSINESS OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (As at 14/06/2018)
WORK PROGRAMME 

AGENDA ITEMS – Wednesday 4th July 2018

Item Format Officer / Councillor 
Management of Camper Vans at 
Coastal Locations

Report Mark Smith, Strategic 
Commissioner - Environment

Recommissioning of Highways Services Report / Presentation Mark Smith, Strategic 
Commissioner - Environment 

Outcomes from Delegation to China 
Visit

Report Alan Evans , Assistant Director  - 
Regeneration & Inward 
Investment

Universal Credit Workshops Scrutiny 
Report

Report Chair of the Committee  

Liverpool City Region Combined 
Authority Update

Officer Report / 
Presentation

Rosemary Boylan, Policy and 
Strategy Manager (External)

Liverpool City Region Combined 
Authority O&S Committee Update

Report Cllr. Mike Sullivan (LCRCA 
Scrutiny Link)

Appointment of Highways 
Representation Panel

Report Report from Committee 
Services

2017/18 Quarter 4 Wirral Plan 
Performance Report

Report David Armstrong, Assistant 
Chief Executive.

Scrutiny Work Programme Update Report Report of the Chair of the 
Committee, Cllr Mike Sullivan 

Page 89



Page 2 of 3

ADDITIONAL AGENDA ITEMS (Subject to approval by Committee) – WAITING TO BE SCHEDULED

Item Format Approximate 
timescale 

Lead Departmental 
Officer  

Wirral Growth Company Committee 
Report / 
Presentation

TBC TBC

Council’s Use of Consultants and 
Interim Staff 

Committee 
Report

TBC TBC

Car Parking charges at Country Parks – 
Impact report

Committee 
Report

TBC TBC

Resident Parking Policy – Impact 
Report

Committee 
Report

TBC TBC

Wirral Plan Strategies and Action Plans 
Updates

Committee 
Report / 
Presentation

TBC TBC

Disaster Recovery Scrutiny Review – 
Follow-up report

Committee 
Report / 
Presentation

TBC TBC

Tourism Scrutiny Review – Follow-up 
report

Committee 
Report / 
Presentation

TBC TBC

Hoylake Golf Resort – Progress Updates TBC TBC TBC

WORK PROGRAMME ACTIVITIES OUTSIDE COMMITTEE 

Item Format Timescale Lead 
Departmental 
Officer  

Progress / Comments

Pre-decision scrutiny of the 
Commercial Strategy

Workshop Aug 2018 Nicola 
Butterworth 
(AD - 
Commercial 
Management)

Impact of Universal Credit Workshop October Lisa Jamieson 
(Head of 
Customer 
Services)

Page 90



Page 3 of 3

Item Format Timescale Lead 
Departmental 
Officer  

Progress / Comments

Development of Wirral Waters

 

Presentation / 
workshop

TBC TBC

Transforming Wirral – further 
business cases

Workshop TBC TBC

Budget Scrutiny TBC TBC TBC

Page 91



This page is intentionally left blank



Business Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Wednesday, 4 July 2018

REPORT TITLE: APPOINTMENT OF THE HIGHWAYS 
REPRESENTATION PANEL

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF GOVERNANCE AND 
ASSURANCE 

REPORT SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to enable this Committee to undertake a review of the 
Highways Representation Panel and to appoint members to serve on that panel if it 
is to be retained in 2018-2019. Standing Order 33 (1) requires that Committees 
should keep the need for panels under review and, in particular, the position must be 
reviewed at the first meeting of a Committee in each municipal year.

Unless appointed as full members, the Leaders and Deputy Leaders of the three 
largest political groups represented on the Council are entitled to attend meetings of 
all Committees, Sub-Committees and Panels, with the right to speak at the invitation 
of the Chair (Standing Order 25(5)).

RECOMMENDATION/S

The Committee is requested –

(1) to confirm that the Highways Representation Panel be re-appointed for 2018-
2019 with the terms of reference identified.

(2) to appoint members to serve on the Highways Representation Panel in 2018-
2019, including the appointment of the Chair and named deputies.

Page 93

Agenda Item 12



SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

To enable the appointment of a Highways Representation Panel to consider 
objections and unresolved petitions relating to all highway and traffic 
management matters.
 

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

No other options were considered beyond those outlined in the report.

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 The Panel’s terms of reference are as follows:

(i). To consider objections relating to all highway and traffic management 
matters governed by the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, whether 
subject to a traffic regulation order or otherwise, including (but not 
limited to) the following:

 
 waiting and parking restrictions;
 speed limits;
 one way traffic orders;
 weight limits
 prohibiting or restricting the use of heavy commercial vehicles;
 signalised and non-signalised pedestrian/cycle/horse crossings;
 provision of off street parking and parking on roads, footpaths, 

pavements and verges;
 traffic signs and traffic signals
 bus lanes and taxi ranks

 
(ii). unresolved petitions relating to highway and traffic management 

matters.
 

(iii). and to then make recommendations to the Business Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee.

3.2 Membership

The membership of the Highways Representation Panel, since its 
establishment in 2009 has been three members, the Chair of the relevant 
Scrutiny Committee and usually the two Party Spokespersons, or their 
nominees. In 2017-2018 the membership was as follows:

Members Deputies
 
 1 Conservative Steve Williams (Chair) Gerry Ellis
  Bruce Berry
 David Elderton
  David Burgess-Joyce

Page 94



  Ian Lewis
Lesley Rennie
Adam Sykes

 Eddie Boult

1 Labour Mike Sullivan  Pat Hackett
Ron Abbey
Anita Leech
Julie McManus
Jean Stapleton
Warren Ward
Jerry Williams

 Gillian Wood
 

1 Liberal Democrat Dave Mitchell  Alan Brighouse
Chris Carubia
Phil Gilchrist
Stuart Kelly

                        
3.3 The Panel is an advisory panel and therefore does not need to be politically 

proportionate.

3.4 The Panel’s recommendations are referred to the Business Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee for consideration. The Committee may approve, amend, 
substitute or reject a Panel’s recommendation(s). All approved and / or 
amended recommendations by the Committee are referred to the relevant 
Cabinet Member for a formal decision to be made.

3.5 Members should note that the panel usually meets during the daytime. 

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no implications arising directly from this report.

5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no implications arising directly from this report. 

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: ICT, STAFFING AND ASSETS

There are no implications arising directly from this report.

7.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

The Panel was first appointed in June 2009 (minute 6 refers) to enable the 
streamlining of the decision making process and to hear public 
representations and receive officer reports.

8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 

It is for political groups to decide how they wish to allocate their Panel places.

Page 95



9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

No because there is no relevance to equality.

REPORT AUTHOR: Andrew Mossop
Principal Committee Officer
telephone:  (0151) 691 8501
email:   andrewmossop@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES - None

REFERENCE MATERIAL

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date
Business Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Business Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Regeneration and Environment Policy and 
Performance Committee

4 July 2017
4 July 2016
14 July 2015

Page 96

mailto:andrewmossop@wirral.gov.uk

	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 MANAGEMENT OF CAMPERVANS AT COASTAL LOCATIONS
	5 Re-Commissioning of Highway Services from October 2018
	6 Outcomes from China Visit - 2016
	7 Early Impact of Universal Credit
	Enc. 1 for Early Impact of Universal Credit

	8 Liverpool City Region Combined Authority Update
	9 Liverpool City Region Combined Authority - Overview & Scrutiny Committee
	10 2017/18 Quarter 4 and Year End Wirral Plan Performance
	Enc. 1 for 2017/18 Quarter 4 and Year End Wirral Plan Performance
	Enc. 2 for 2017/18 Quarter 4 and Year End Wirral Plan Performance

	11 Business Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Work Programme Report
	Enc. 1 for Business Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Work Programme Report

	12 Appointment of the Highways Representation Panel

